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Independent auditor’s report 

To the Shareholders of Aegis Brands Inc. 

Our opinion 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 

the financial position of Aegis Brands Inc. and its subsidiaries (together, the Company) as at 

December 26, 2020 and December 28, 2019 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the 52-

week periods then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the 

International Accounting Standards Board (IFRS). 

What we have audited 

The Company's consolidated financial statements comprise: 

 the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 26, 2020 and December 28, 2019;

 the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss for the 52-week periods then

ended;

 the consolidated statements of changes in shareholders' equity for the 52-week periods then ended;

 the consolidated statements of cash flows for the 52-week periods then ended; and

 the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of 

the consolidated financial statements section of our report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our opinion. 

Independence 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the consolidated financial statements in Canada. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 

in accordance with these requirements. 



Material uncertainty related to going concern 

We draw attention to note 2 in the consolidated financial statements, which describes events and 

circumstances, along with other matters that indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast 

significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified 

in respect of this matter. 

Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements for the 52-week period ended December 26, 2020. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In 
addition to the matter described in the Material uncertainty related to going concern section, we have 
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.  

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Valuation of trademarks acquired in the 

Bridgehead Coffee (Bridgehead) business 

combination 

Refer to note 3 – Acquisition of Bridgehead and 
note 5 – Summary of significant accounting policies 
to the consolidated financial statements. 

The Company acquired Bridgehead on January 9, 
2020, for cash consideration of $6 million, stock 
consideration of $3.3 million and contingent 
consideration of up to $1.5 million. The fair value of 
the identifiable assets acquired included $3.9 million 
in intangible assets, which relate to trademarks. 
Management applied significant judgment in 
estimating the fair value of the intangible asset. To 
estimate the fair value of the trademarks, 
management, with the assistance of external 
valuation experts, used the royalty relief method to 
value the trademarks using a discounted cash flow 
model. Management developed significant 
assumptions related to revenue projections, growth 
rates, royalty rate and the discount rate. 

We considered this a key audit matter due to the 
significant judgment applied by management in 

Our approach to addressing the matter included the 

following procedures, among others: 

 Tested how management estimated the fair 
value of the trademarks, which included the 
following: 

 Read the purchase agreement. 

 Tested the underlying data used by 
management in the discounted cash flow 
model. 

 Evaluated the reasonableness of the 
significant assumptions used by 
management related to revenue projections 
and growth rates by considering the past 
performance of Bridgehead, and the fiscal 
2020 budget prepared by management 

 Evaluated the appropriateness of 
management’s royalty relief method and 
discounted cash flow model, as well as 
certain significant assumptions such as the 
royalty rate and discount rate with the 
assistance of professionals with specialized 
skill and knowledge in the field of valuation.



Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

estimating the fair value of the trademarks, including 
the development of significant assumptions. This, in 
turn, led to a high degree of auditor judgment, 
subjectivity and effort in performing procedures and 
evaluating audit evidence relating to the significant 
assumptions used by management. The audit effort 
involved the use of professionals with specialized 
skill and knowledge in the field of valuation.

Impairment assessments of property and 

equipment, right-of-use assets, trademarks, and 

goodwill 

Refer to note 2 – Going concern and COVID-19, 
note 5 – Summary of significant accounting policies, 
note 12 – Property, equipment, and right-of-use 
assets, note 13 – Intangible assets and note 21 – 
Impairment of assets to the consolidated financial 
statements. 

As at December 26, 2020, the Company had 
property and equipment of $5.9 million, right-of-use 
assets of $10.3 million, trademarks of $3.9 million 
and goodwill of $1.4 million. Property and 
equipment and right-of-use assets are tested for 
impairment when events or changes in 
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not 
be recoverable. Trademarks and goodwill are 
subject to an annual impairment test or any time an 
impairment indicator exists. The year-end date has 
been selected as the mandatory annual test date. 
For the purpose of measuring recoverable amounts, 
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which 
there are separately identifiable cash inflows that 
are largely independent of the cash inflows from 
their assets or group of assets, which represent a 
cash generating unit (CGU). An impairment loss is 
recognized for the amount by which the CGU’s 
carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount of each CGU is the higher of its 
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. 

Our approach to addressing the matter included the 
following procedures, among others: 

 Tested how management determined the 
recoverable amounts of certain CGUs, which 
included the following: 

 Evaluated the appropriateness of the 
methods applied and the discounted cash 
flow models. 

 Tested the reasonableness of the revenue 
projections and revenue growth rates, by 
considering the results historically achieved 
by the CGUs, fiscal 2021 budget approved 
by the Board of Directors and industry data. 

 Assessed the reasonableness of the 
discount rates applied with the assistance of 
professionals with specialized skill and 
knowledge in the field of valuation. 

 Tested the underlying data used in the 
discounted cash flow models.



Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Management determined that the CGUs for the 
purpose of testing impairment of a large portion of 
property and equipment and right-of-use assets are 
each Company-operated café or retail cannabis 
dispensary. The recoverable amount for each of the 
CGUs, for which an impairment indicator was 
identified, has been determined using the higher of 
the fair value less costs of disposal and value in 
use, using discounted cash flow models. The 
significant assumptions applied by management in 
determining the recoverable amount of each of 
these CGUs included revenue projections, a 
revenue growth rate and a discount rate. 
Management recognized an impairment charge of 
$1.3 million on property and equipment and $2.3 
million on right-of-use assets during fiscal 2020.  

Management determined that the CGU for the 
purpose of testing impairment of goodwill and 
trademarks is the Bridgehead operating segment 
(the Bridgehead CGU). The recoverable amount for 
the Bridgehead CGU is based on the value in use 
method, using a discounted cash flow model. The 
significant assumptions applied by management in 
determining the recoverable amount included the 
revenue projections, a revenue growth rate and a 
discount rate. The fair value of the CGU exceeded 
the carrying value and accordingly no impairment 
was required. 

We considered this a key audit matter due to the 
judgment made by management in developing 
significant assumptions to determine the 
recoverable amounts of the CGUs. This in turn 
resulted in significant audit effort and subjectivity in 
performing audit procedures to test the recoverable 
amounts of the CGUs determined by management. 
Professionals with specialized skill and knowledge 
in the field of valuation assisted us in performing our 
procedures.



Other information 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Management’s 

Discussion and Analysis, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report and the information, 

other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, included in the annual 

report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 

and will not express an opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this 

auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 

required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. When we read the information, other 

than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, included in the annual report, 

if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to 

those charged with governance. 

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the 
consolidated financial statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 

statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is 

necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 

process. 



Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as 

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards 

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 

the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 

we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 

to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 

the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 

cease to continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 

business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 

statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We 

remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 



We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and 

are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Donato Lisozzi. 

/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

Vaughan, Ontario 
March 31, 2021 
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
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  2020  2019 
ASSETS     
     
Current assets     
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,069 $ 11,458 
Restricted cash (note 25)  -  565 
Trade and other receivables (note 9)  1,227  2,314 
Notes and leases receivable (note 9)  31  8,419 
Inventories (note 11)  819  529 
Prepaid expenses and other assets  183  258 
Assets of discontinued operations held for sale (notes 4 and 29)  77,421  - 
  80,750  23,543 
Non-current assets     
Notes and leases receivable (note 9)  162  42,658 
Investments in equity securities (notes 5 and 10)  122  450 
Right-of-use assets (note 12)  10,347  12,635 
Property and equipment (note 12)  5,895  2,179 
Intangible assets (note 13)  4,028  31,887 
Goodwill (note 13)  1,352  - 
     
Total assets $ 102,656 $ 113,352 
     
LIABILITIES     
     
Current liabilities     
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 14) $ 5,065 $ 4,436 
Contingent consideration (note 14) 
Provisions (note 15) 

 437  
155  

 - 
359  

Other liabilities   -  44 
Short-term debt (note 16)  661  - 
Gift card liability and loyalty program  348  2,106 
Lease liabilities (note 15)  1,747  11,290 
Deposits from franchisees 
Deferred income 

 - 
- 

 705 
483 

Liabilities of discontinued operations held for sale (notes 4 and 29)  65,671  - 
  74,084  19,423 
Non-current liabilities     
Provisions (note 15)  200  200 
Contingent consideration (note 14) 
Lease liabilities (note 15) 

 566 
11,569 

 - 
56,830 

Deferred income (note 28)  -  2,178 
Deferred income taxes (note 22)  1,080  3,548 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
Going concern (note 2). 
Contingencies, commitments and guarantees (note 26).  
Approved by the Directors on March 31, 2021.  
Michael Bregman, Director; Stephen Kelley, Director. 
 
 

Total liabilities $ 87,499  82,179 
 
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

 
15,157 

 
31,173 

     
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 102,656  113,352 

 



Aegis Brands Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss 
For the 52 weeks ended December 26, 2020 and December 28, 2019 
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts) 
 

 
 
 

2 

 

   2020  2019 
      
Revenue (note 17)      
Company-owned cafés and product sales  $   11,201    - 
    11,201   - 
      
Operating costs and expenses (note 18)      
Company-owned cafés and cost of product sales   9,221  - 
General and administrative expenses    2,606   1,795  
Depreciation of property and equipment   824  - 
Amortization of intangible assets   21  - 
Depreciation of right-of-use assets   1,912  - 
Asset impairment charges (note 21)   3,556  - 
    18,140    1,795  
      
Loss from continuing operations   (6,939)  (1,795) 
      
Interest and financing expenses (note 19)    (792)  - 
Other income (expense) (note 20)   950  (111) 
      
Loss before income taxes from continuing operations    (6,781)      (1,906)    
      
Income taxes expense (recovery) (note 22)   949  (34) 
      
Loss from continuing operations    (7,730)  (1,872) 
      
Discontinued operations, net of taxes      
Second Cup Coffee Co. (notes 4 and 29)   (11,892) $ (2,802) 
      
      
Net loss and comprehensive loss for the period   (19,622) $ (4,674) 
      
Basic and diluted net loss per share – continuing operations  $ (0.34)  (0.09) 
Basic and diluted net loss per share – discontinued operations  $ (0.52)  (0.14) 
      
Basic and diluted loss per share (note 23)  $ (0.86) $ (0.23) 

 
 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 



Aegis Brands Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity 
For the 52 weeks ended December 26, 2020 and December 28, 2019 
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars) 
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  Share 

Capital   
 Warrants  Contributed 

Surplus 
 Retained 

Deficit 
 Total 

           
Balance - December 29, 2018 $ 28,590 $ 165 $ 61,775 $ (54,084) $ 36,446 
           
Adoption of new accounting 
policy – net of tax (note 5) 

$ - $ - $ - $ (870) $ (870) 

           
Net loss, continuing operations  -  -  -  (1,872)  (1,872) 
           
Net loss, discontinued 

operations 
 -  -  -  (2,802)  (2,802) 

           
Stock option plan expense  
(note 30) 

 -  -  69  -  69 

           
Shares issued (note 6)  200  -  2  -  202 
           
Balance - December 28, 2019 $ 28,790 $ 165 $ 61,846 $ (59,628) $ 31,173 
           
           
           
Net loss, continuing operations  -  -  -  (7,730)  (7,730) 
           
Net loss, discontinued 

operations 
 -  -  -  (11,892)  (11,892) 

           
Stock option plan expense  
(note 30) 

 -  -  35  -  35 

           
Shares issued (note 6)  3,571  (165)  165  -  3,571 
           
Balance - December 26, 2020 
 

$ 32,361 $ -  62,046 
 

$ (79,250) $ 15,157 

  
 
 
 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 



Aegis Brands Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow 
For the 52 weeks ended December 26, 2020 and December 28, 2019 
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars) 
 

 

 

  2020  2019 
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)     
Operating activities     
Net loss for the period $ (19,622) $ (4,674) 
Adjusted for:     
        Net loss from discontinued operations   11,892   2,802 
Items not involving cash     

Depreciation of property and equipment   991  - 
Amortization of intangible assets  21  - 
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 12)  2,061  - 
Share-based compensation expense  (118)  80 
Deferred income taxes (note 22)  949  - 
Interest expense – lease liabilities (note 19)  745  - 
Interest income – lease receivable (note 19)  (14)  - 
Loss on disposal of leases  22   
Change in fair value of investments in securities (note 20)  328  1,270 
Asset impairment charges (note 21)  3,556  - 
Changes in non-cash working capital and other (note 24)  364  43 

Cash provided by operating activities – continuing operations  1,175  (479) 
Cash provided by (used in) from operating activities – discontinued 

operations 
 (1,275)  1,480 

Cash provided by (used in) by operating activities  (100)  1,001 
     
Investing activities     
Cash payments for capital expenditures   (2,749)  - 
Cash payments for intangible assets   (138)  - 
Net payment for acquisition (note 3)  (4,679)  - 
Notes receivable repayment   187  - 
Cash used in investing activities – continuing operations  (7,379)  - 
Cash used in investing activities – discontinued operations  (164)    (1,863) 
Cash used in investing activities  (7,543)            (1,863) 
     
Financing activities     
Receipt of funds from revolving line of credit (note 16)  500  - 
Receipt of funds from promissory notes (note 16) 
Lease payments 

 150 
(2,149)  - 

- 
Repayment of long-term debt  (8)  - 
Proceeds from issuance of shares  -  200 
Payment for repurchased shares  -  (115) 
Transaction costs  (46)  - 
Cash used in financing activities – continuing operations  (1,553)  85 
Cash used in financing activities – discontinued operations  (1,193)  (2,653) 
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities  (2,746)  (2,568) 
     
 (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the  
period 

 (10,389)  (3,430) 

 
Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of the period 

  
11,458   

14,888 
Cash and cash equivalents - End of the period $ 1,069 $ 11,458 



Aegis Brands Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the 52 weeks ended December 26, 2020 and December 28, 2019 
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts) 
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1. Organization and nature of business 

Aegis Brands Inc. (the “Company”, “Aegis Brands”, formerly “The Second Cup Ltd.”) is a consolidator of brands 
in the food, beverage and cannabis spaces with the mission to allow for independent entrepreneurial spirit while 
providing shared services that encourage unlimited growth. The Company owns and operates the Second Cup 
Coffee Co.TM (“Second Cup”) specialty coffee business as part of a portfolio of brands that also includes 
Bridgehead Coffee (Bridgehead®), and Hemisphere Cannabis CoTM (“Hemisphere”) The Company owns the 
trademarks, trade names, operating procedures and systems and other intellectual property used in connection 
with the operation of these brands in Canada. 
 
Following shareholder and regulatory approval, the Company changed its name during the year from “The 
Second Cup Ltd.” to “Aegis Brands Inc.”. As a result of this change, the parent company is now Aegis Brands 
Inc., while its retail brands continue to operate as Second Cup Coffee Co.TM, Bridgehead Coffee®, and 
Hemisphere Cannabis CoTM. 
 
Aegis Brands Inc. is a Canadian public company incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario) in 
2011. The Company relocated to a new registered office in September 2020 at 5915 Airport Road, Suite 630, 
Mississauga, ON, L4V 1T1. The Company’s website is www.aegisbrands.ca. The Company’s common shares 
trade under the new name and the new Toronto Stock Exchange ticker symbol “AEG” (previously “SCU”). Each 
existing certificate reflecting the Company’s prior name will continue to represent a valid certificate until such 
certificate is transferred, re-registered or otherwise exchanged. 
 
The Company owns and operates three retail operating brands. As of December 26, 2020, there were 216 cafés 
operating under the trade name Second Cup Coffee Co., out of which 27 were Company-owned and the balance 
were operated by franchisees. Bridgehead has 20 Company-owned cafés including its flagship roastery, all of 
which continue to operate under the Bridgehead brand. During the year, the Company opened 4 retail cannabis 
dispensaries which are open for business under the operating trade name Hemisphere Cannabis Co. 
 
On February 7, 2021, the Company announced that it has entered into a definitive purchase agreement to sell 
substantially all of the assets comprising its Second Cup Coffee Co. retail operating brand. This has been further 
discussed in subsequent sections of these consolidated financial statements. In these financial statements, the 
operations of Second Cup Coffee Co have been presented as discontinued operations (note 4). 

2. Going concern and COVID-19 
These financial statements have been prepared using International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (“IFRS”) applicable to a going concern, which contemplates the 
realization of assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business as they become due. 
 
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a strain of novel coronavirus disease, 
(“COVID-19”), a global pandemic. Since then, the outbreak has spread on a global scale, causing companies and 
various international jurisdictions to impose restrictions, such as quarantines, closures, cancellations and travel 
restrictions. While some of these restrictions have since been lifted to varying degrees across provinces in Canada 
(particularly during the summer of 2020), the case count continues to be a cause of concern, along with the 
additional questions and uncertainty as a result of the emergence of the COVID-19 variants. Due to these reasons, 
government and business enforced restrictions continue to be in effect to varying degrees across parts of Canada. 
 

 
 



Aegis Brands Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the 52 weeks ended December 26, 2020 and December 28, 2019 
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts) 
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Through the 52-week period, a majority of the Company-operated and franchise locations continued to be 
negatively impacted by the decline in consumer foot traffic especially notable in downtown city areas, scaled 
down nature of store operations due to closure of dining space for periods of time, and the general shift in 
consumer spending patterns in the retail industry. As of the close of fiscal 2020, 33 franchised and company-
owned cafés, representing 14% of the Company’s café and store network, were temporarily suspended for 
business operations. There were 203 operating cafés and 4 open retail cannabis dispensaries which reported sales 
during the 52-week period, representing 86% of the Company’s franchise and company-owned store network. 
The number of open and temporarily suspended locations continued to fluctuate through the 52-week period 
primarily due to government and business enforced restrictions as a result of the pandemic. 
 
The temporary and permanent store closures, and restricted store operations as a result of the circumstances 
described above, has significantly reduced sales and impacted the Company’s cash flows in fiscal 2020.  The 
decrease in sales and profitability is considered an indicator of impairment by the Company. The Company has 
also considered the uncertainty in the current economic environment, the impact of any emergence of the COVID-
19 variants to the Company’s cash flows, timing and ability to return to profitability and has determined that there 
is uncertainty related to the Company’s cash availability to fund its operations for the next 12 months on its own.  
The Company has determined that these are material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the 
Company’s ability to continue as going concern.  In assessing whether the going concern assumption was 
appropriate, the Company took into account all relevant information available about the future, which was at 
least, but not limited to, the 12-month period following the date of approval of these financial statements. 
 
As a result of the negative impacts outlined above considered as an indicator of impairment by management, the 
Company has performed an assessment of the recoverability of its assets, including its trademarks, right-of-use 
assets, property and equipment. Following this assessment, the Company has recognized an impairment charge 
against its assets during the 52-week period. In addition to this, the Company has reviewed the expected credit 
losses on amounts owed to the Company and has recorded additional expected credit losses in accordance with 
IFRS 9 on its lease receivables based on forward-looking factors. 
 
In an effort to mitigate the risks associated with the pandemic and in response to the reduction of sales, the 
Company actively reduced its operating costs by halting discretionary capital expenditures and significantly 
lowering its staff compensation costs through measures including: the temporary and permanent layoffs of staff, 
temporary pay reduction for employees at the corporate office, and the temporary suspension of compensation 
for the Company’s Board members. The Company has also reduced forward inventory purchases, reduced 
discretionary expenditures, and continues to work with vendors and suppliers to further reduce costs and seek 
payment abatement and deferrals, where possible, as a way to manage liquidity. 
 
Through fiscal 2020, the Company continued to be engaged in discussions with landlords, both on its own behalf 
and on behalf of its franchisees, to request abatements and/or deferrals of rent, and, where appropriate, to discuss 
potential amendments to or the termination of lease agreements for certain underperforming Second Cup café 
locations. The Company has made progress on its discussions with landlords and continues to engage in 
discussions to lower its occupancy costs in the face of reduced sales as a result of the ongoing COVID-19 
pandemic. 
 
Through fiscal 2020, the Company continued to evaluate all available, applicable government relief programs, 
including the Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy (CEWS), Canada Emergency Rent Subsidy (CERS) and the 
Canada Emergency Commercial Rent Assistance (CECRA) program, which are financial relief measures initiated 
by the Federal Government of Canada in response to the economic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. The 
Company determined that it was eligible to qualify for all of the above relief financial programs in fiscal 2020. 
 



Aegis Brands Inc. 
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For the 52 weeks period ended December 26, 2020, the Company applied for $3,747 of wage subsidies in 
connection with the CEWS financial relief program, of which $318 was received in cash following the completion 
of its financial year. Of the $3,747, $1,530 was claimed by Bridgehead with $163 included in trade and other 
receivables and $2,217 was claimed by Second Cup Co. with $196 included in trade and other receivables on the 
consolidated statement of financial position. The Company has recorded the wage subsidy as a reduction to the 
eligible remuneration expense incurred by the Company during this period. For the 52 weeks period ended 
December 26, 2020, the Company applied for $416 of rent subsidies in connection with the CERS financial relief 
program, which was received in cash following the completion of its financial year. Of the $416, $250 was 
claimed by Bridgehead and $166 was claimed by Second Cup Co. included in trade and other receivables on the 
consolidated statement of financial position. The Company has presented the rent and government subsidy as 
other income, in its consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss. For the 52 weeks period ended 
December 26, 2020, the Company applied for $811 of rent reductions under the CECRA financial relief program, 
in connection with the Company’s lease commitments specific to Bridgehead; the amount is comprised of $270 
of reductions from its landlords, recorded in the statement of operations and comprehensive loss as a reduction 
to underlying occupancy costs within Company-owned cafés and cost of product sales. As part of the same relief 
program, the Company received $541 of rent reductions from the Government of Canada; this has been recorded 
in the statement of operations and comprehensive loss as other income. 
 
The Company continues to proactively manage its cash flow position and liquidity requirements in the face of 
various uncertainties.  On December 7, 2020, the Company entered into a loan agreement with CWB Franchise 
Finance (CWB) pursuant to which a revolving credit facility of $4 million was made available to the Company, 
secured by the assets of Second Cup and Bridgehead. The CWB loan is subject to certain financial covenants 
starting in Q4 2021 and additional draw downs on this credit facility currently require the approval of CWB as a 
result of the impending sale of Second Cup. In addition to the revolving credit facility with CWB, the Company 
continues to pursue options to obtain additional capital to pursue long-term opportunities, including, but not 
limited to, further growth in the cannabis sector and future acquisition opportunities.  In accordance with the 
terms of the agreement to sell substantially all assets comprising its Second Cup specialty coffee business (note 
4), the Company is expected to receive $14 million in cash, subject to the closing of the transaction, which will 
provide additional liquidity and cash to fund the Company’s operations; however, in light of this pending sale, 
the availability of the revolving credit facility with CWB, under the current terms and conditions, is not certain 
at this time should the sale close. In addition, due to the impact of the pandemic on cash flows, the ability to meet 
the financial covenants starting in Q4 2021 is also uncertain. The closing of the transaction and receipt of the $14 
million proceeds is expected to strengthen the balance sheet of the Company and its ability to meet obligations 
as they come due, as well as pursue its previously announced growth strategy. Although the Company believes 
the close of the sale is highly probable, there is no assurance that the pending sale transaction will close, whether 
the expected proceeds will be sufficient, or the existing CWB facility will continue to be available with its current 
terms and conditions, to enable the company to continue as a going concern. 
 
These financial statements do not reflect the adjustments to the carrying value of assets and liabilities and the 
reported expenses and balance sheet classifications that would be necessary if the Company were unable to realize 
its assets and settle its liabilities as a going concern in the normal course of operations. Such adjustments could 
be material. 
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3.  Acquisition of Bridgehead 

On January 9, 2020, the Company completed the acquisition of 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of 
Bridgehead, which is based out of Ottawa. The base purchase price consisted of cash consideration of $6.0 
million, stock consideration of $3.3 million, which represents the fair value of the stock as at the valuation date 
of January 8, 2020, and additional earn out payments of up to $1.489 million based on the profitability of 
Bridgehead’s existing cafés over the next two years. 
 
  Consideration 
Consideration paid:   
Cash consideration $ 5,993 
Stock consideration  3,335 
Contingent consideration1  1,489 
Net consideration paid $ 10,817 

1The earn out payments have been discounted using a risk-adjusted discount rate based on the date they are payable. In accordance with the terms of the 
purchase agreement, following completion of each of the 12-month fiscal periods of 2020 and 2021, the Company will make a payment equal to $750,000 
multiplied by a fraction; the numerator is the EBITDA achieved during the applicable 12-month fiscal period and the denominator is $2,250,000. The earn-
out payment is also subject to other terms as defined in the share purchase agreement. The contingent consideration was revalued as of fiscal 2020, in 
accordance with the payout terms in the purchase agreement, resulting in a $486 gain recognized in the consolidated statement of operations and 
comprehensive loss. 
 
The Company incurred acquisition costs of $240 in connection with its acquisition of Bridgehead. The final 
purchase price allocation as of the valuation date, January 8, 2020, is as follows: 

   
Net assets acquired    
 
Current assets 
Cash $ 1,314 
Prepaid expenses  302 
Inventory  541 
Accounts receivable  27 
   
Non-current assets   
Leases Receivable 
Right-of-use assets  
Property and equipment  

247 
8,647 
5,429 

Trade name  3,911 
Goodwill  1,352 
   
Current liabilities   
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   1,656 
Lease liabilities  1,279 
Deferred revenue 
Gift card liability  

148 
186 

   
Non-current liabilities   
Other liabilities 
Leases liabilities  

69 
7,574 

   
Net purchase price $ 10,817 
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The amount of the revenue and profit or loss of Bridgehead since the acquisition date, which is included in the 
consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss, is presented in Note 29 (“Segmented Reporting”).  

 
4. Held For Sale and Discontinued Operations 

On February 7, 2021, the Company entered into a definitive purchase agreement to sell substantially all of the 
assets comprising its specialty coffee brand, Second Cup Coffee Co. (“Second Cup”), to an affiliate of Quebec-
based Foodtastic Inc. (“Foodtastic”). As at December 26, 2020, the Company is committed to a plan to sell the 
disposal group, comprising the assets and liabilities of Second Cup which are included in the definitive purchase 
agreement (the “Agreement”). The disposal group is expected to be sold to Foodtastic for a sale price, as outlined 
in the Agreement, of $14 million in cash payable on closing (subject to customary closing adjustments) as well 
as a post-closing earn-out based on royalties earned from certain Second Cup cafés opened following completion 
of the sale. The sale of this disposal group is subject to approval by at least two-thirds of the votes cast by the 
Company’s common shareholders at a special meeting of common shareholders scheduled to be held on April 7, 
2021. The directors and executive officers of the Company and certain other major shareholders, collectively 
holding approximately 43% of the Company’s issued and outstanding common shares, have entered into support 
agreements agreeing to vote their common shares in favour of the transaction. Management has assessed that the 
second cup assets met the criteria to be classified as held for sale as at December 26, 2020 and it is unlikely that 
significant changes to the transaction will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn. The disposal group is 
available for immediate sale in its present condition, subject to terms that are usual and customary for sales of 
this nature in the retail industry, and the sale is highly probable based on the factors above. In accordance with 
IFRS 5 (“Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”), the Company has classified this 
disposal group as held for sale as it’s carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction 
rather than through continuing use. 
 
The Company has measured the disposal group classified as held for sale at the lower of its carrying amount and 
fair value less costs to sell being $14 million less: $500 in estimated costs to sell and $1,750 estimated in working 
capital adjustments. As at December 26, 2020, the carrying value of the Second Cup disposal group was $23 
million, which gave rise to an impairment loss of $11.2 million. 
 
As the disposal group referenced above represents a major line of business, and the Company has a single 
coordinated plan to dispose of this separate major line of business. As such, the Company has presented the 
disposal group as discontinued operations as a single amount in the consolidated statement of operations and 
comprehensive loss, comprising the post-tax loss of discontinued operations and post-tax loss recognized on the 
measurement to fair value less costs to sell. The Company has further disclosed details of the discontinued 
operations in note 29 in these consolidated financial statements. 
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5. Summary of significant accounting policies 

a. Basis of preparation 

The consolidated financial statements (the “financial statements”) have been prepared in accordance with and 
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (“IFRS”).  The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 
March 31, 2021. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for 
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The Company’s 
functional currency is the Canadian dollar. 
 
The Company’s fiscal year (the “period”, “fiscal year” or “year”) follows the method implemented by many retail 
entities, such that each quarter consists of 13 weeks and ends on the Saturday closest to the calendar quarter end.  
The fiscal year is made up of 52 or 53-week periods ending on the last Saturday of December.  Fiscal 2020 is a 
52-week period (2019 – 52-week period). 
 
The Company transitioned to IFRS 16, Leases (“IFRS 16”), in 2019, in accordance with the modified 
retrospective approach. On adoption of this accounting standard, the Company recognized lease liabilities in 
relation to leases, which had in prior years been classified under the principles of IAS 17, Leases, as ‘operating 
lease commitments’. For Company-operated cafés and the head office, right-of-use assets were measured and 
recognized on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position in accordance with the accounting standards. 
 
The Company’s results in fiscal 2020 reflect the consolidated financial statements of its retail operating brands, 
with Second Cup presented as discontinued operations. 

 
b. Segmented information and reporting 

The Company’s retail brands, Second Cup, Bridgehead, and Hemisphere operate as independent brands. 
Financial results and business performance indicators are provided to the Chief Executive Officer for each of 
these three retail brands, and hence each brand represents its own legal entity and reportable segment. The 
financial results of the brands are reported on a consolidated basis on these financial statements, with Second 
Cup presented as discontinued operations (see note 29). 
 
The Company’s consolidated operating revenues, including discontinued operations, comprise royalties from 
franchised cafés (Second Cup only), the sale of goods from Company-operated cafés and retail cannabis 
dispensaries, the sale of goods through retail and other ancillary channels, and other service fees. 
 
Management is organized based on the Company’s operating brands rather than the specific revenue streams. 

 
c. Basis of consolidation 

These consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its wholly 
owned subsidiaries as summarized below. 
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Subsidiaries 
Percentage of 
equity interest 

Bridgehead (2000) Inc. 100% 
2734524 Ontario Inc. (Hemisphere Cannabis Co.) 100% 
2707048 Ontario Corporation (inactive) 100% 

 

IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, outlines the requirements for the preparation and presentation of 
consolidated financial statements, requiring entities to consolidate entities it controls. 
 
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins on the date that control is acquired by a Company over the subsidiary and 
ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. The income and expenses of new subsidiaries acquired 
or disposed during the year, as well as new subsidiaries incorporated during the year under Aegis Brands Inc., 
are included in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss from the date the Company 
gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary. 
 
All intercompany transactions, revenue and expenses were eliminated on preparation of these annual consolidated 
financial statements. 
 

d. Business combinations 

IFRS 3, Business Combinations, establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer in a business 
combination recognizes and measures in its consolidated financial statements the assets and liabilities acquired; 
recognizes and measures the goodwill acquired in the business combination; and determines what information to 
disclose to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business 
combination. 
 
The Company accounts for business combinations by applying the acquisition method.  
 
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair 
value. Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the net of the 
acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.  
 
Contingent consideration must be measured at fair value at the time of the business combination and is taken into 
account in the determination of goodwill. Some changes in the fair value of contingent consideration that the 
acquirer recognizes after the acquisition date may be the result of additional information that the acquirer obtained 
after that date about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date. Such changes are measurement 
period adjustments. However, changes resulting from events after the acquisition date, such as meeting an 
earnings target are not measurement period adjustments. The Company accounts for changes in the fair value of 
contingent consideration that are not measurement period adjustments as follows: 
 
○ Contingent consideration classified as equity shall not be remeasured and its subsequent settlement shall be 

accounted for within equity. 
 

Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument is measured at fair value 
and gains and losses are recognized in either profit or loss. 
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e. Financial statement line items 

Financial instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have 
expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of 
ownership. Financial liabilities are derecognized when obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. 
 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Consolidated Statements of Financial 
Position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.  Hedge accounting is not used. 
 
Financial assets classified as fair value through profit and loss ("FVTPL") are measured at fair value with any 
resultant gain or loss recognized in profit or loss. Financial assets classified as fair value through other 
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) are measured at fair value with any subsequent remeasurement recognized 
in other comprehensive income. When FVTOCI financial assets are derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognized directly in equity is recognized in profit or loss. Financial assets held in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and where the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest are 
classified as measured at amortized cost. Transaction costs associated with FVTPL financial assets are expensed 
as incurred, while transaction costs associated with all other financial assets are included in the initial carrying 
amount of the asset. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of loans and 
borrowings, directly attributable transaction costs. Financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities, 
and are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The Company has 
classified its financial instruments as follows: 
 
Financial instrument  Recognition method 
  
Financial assets  
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash 

Amortized cost 
Amortized cost 

Trade and other receivables Amortized cost 
Notes and leases receivable Amortized cost 
Warrants Fair value through profit and loss 
  

        Financial liabilities  
        Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Amortized cost using the effective interest rate method 

Contingent consideration Fair value through profit and loss 
        Provision Amortized cost using the effective interest rate method 
        Other liabilities Amortized cost using the effective interest rate method 
        Short-term debt Amortized cost using the effective interest rate method 

Deposits from franchisees  Amortized cost using the effective interest rate method 
Lease liabilities Amortized cost using the effective interest rate method 
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Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held with banks and other short-term highly liquid 
investments with original maturities of three months or less. 
 
Leases receivable 
The leases receivable balance primarily relates to a lease that the Company has entered into with the landlord and 
has subsequently entered into a sublease agreement with the tenant. IFRS 16 requires the Company, as an 
intermediate lessor, to classify a sublease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, rather 
than by reference to the underlying property. The lease receivable for the sublease was measured at the amount 
equal to the lease liability, and includes the underlying interest income resulting from the sublease agreement. The 
Company does not have any cash flows for its lease receivable or an associated lease liability for this subleased 
location. 
 
Government grants 
Government grants are recognized as they are received or if there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received, and the Company will comply with all underlying terms and conditions of the grant. Government grants 
relating to costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss over the 
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate. 

Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value, with cost being determined on an average cost 
basis for items that are interchangeable. Net realizable value is the estimated recoverable amount less applicable 
selling expenses. If the carrying value exceeds the net realizable amount, a write-down is recognized. Write-downs 
are reversed if the circumstances that caused the initial write-down no longer exist. 
 
Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation net of any impairment losses. Cost includes 
expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s 
carrying value or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably. The carrying 
value of a replaced asset is removed when replaced.  Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated 
statements of operations and comprehensive loss during the period in which they are incurred. Where property and 
equipment construction projects are of a sufficient size and duration, an amount is capitalized for the costs used to 
finance construction. 

 
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line basis as this approach best reflects consumption and benefit 
patterns pertaining to the asset’s use. Depreciation is charged commencing when the asset is available for use.  The 
following rates are based on the expected useful lives of the assets: 
 
Leasehold improvements                                                 lesser of 10 years and the remaining term of the lease 
Equipment, furniture, fixtures and other                  3 to 7 years 
Computer hardware         3 years 

 
Right-of-use assets 
IFRS 16 requires the Company, as a lessee for company-operated cafés and the head office, to recognize right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities for leases with terms of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low 
value; and recognize depreciation for lease assets separately from interest on lease liabilities on the consolidated 
statements of operations and comprehensive loss. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the 
following:  
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● the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability; 
● any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received; 
● any initial direct costs; and 
● restoration costs. 

 
The balance of the Company’s right-of-use assets is presented net of impairment recorded on the consolidated 
statements of financial position. 
 
The Company entered into an agreement to finance the purchase of a commercial cargo van, with a maturity date 
of August 2024. The Company has recorded this as part of its right-of-use assets. 
 
Intangible assets  
Intangible assets consist of trademarks and software, which are recorded at cost and subsequently amortized or 
assessed for impairment as follows: 

 
(i) Trademarks  
Trademarks consist of trade names, operating procedures and systems and other intellectual property used in 
connection with the operation of the Bridgehead cafés in Canada and are recorded at the historical cost less 
impairment write-downs. The trademark is an indefinite life intangible asset that is tested annually for impairment 
or at any time an indicator for impairment exists.  The trademark assets do not have continual renewal requirements 
nor is there any deterioration incurred due to usage.  The trademark assets are considered to have indefinite lives. 
 
 (ii) Software  
Purchased software is recorded at cost and amortized commencing when the asset is available for use.  
Amortization is calculated using the straight-line basis as management believes this approach best reflects 
consumption and benefit patterns pertaining to the asset’s use. The following rate is based on the expected useful 
life of the asset: 
 
Software         3 to 7 years 
 
Where software implementation projects are of a sufficient size and duration, an amount is capitalized for the costs 
used to finance development. 
 
(iii) Goodwill 
The Company has recorded Goodwill on its consolidated statement of financial position, which is carried at cost 
net of impairment losses. 

 
Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is 
more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount can be 
reliably estimated. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation 
at the end of the reporting period and are discounted to present value where the effect is material. 

 
Income taxes 
Income taxes comprise current and deferred income taxes. Income taxes are recognized in the consolidated 
statement of operations and comprehensive loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognized directly in 
equity, in which case the income tax is also recognized directly in equity. Current income taxes are the expected 
taxes payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, at the end of 
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous periods. 
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Deferred income taxes are recognized in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying values in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income taxes are 
determined on a non-discounted basis using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at 
the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position dates, and are expected to apply when the deferred income tax 
asset or liability is recovered or settled.  Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized. 

 
Gift card and loyalty program liability 
The gift card program allows customers to prepay for future purchases by loading a dollar value onto their gift 
cards through cash or credit/debit cards in the cafés or online through credit cards, when and as needed.  The gift 
card liability represents liabilities related to unused balances on the card net of estimated breakage. These balances 
are included as sales from franchised cafés, or as revenue of Company-operated cafés, at the time the customer 
redeems the amount in a café for products. Gift cards do not have an expiration date and outstanding unused 
balances are not depleted.   
 
The determination of the gift card breakage rate is based upon Company-specific historical load and redemption 
patterns. The Company has calculated a breakage rate of 3.59% in fiscal 2020 based on historical redemption 
patterns for Bridgehead, the nature of the gift card program and data of gift card transactions. Gift card breakage 
is recognized on a pro rata basis based on historical gift card redemption patterns. 

 
Lease liabilities 
The Company enters into leases for its locations, including its cafés and retail cannabis dispensaries, as well as 
equipment in the normal course of business operations. The Company has measures its lease liabilities at the net 
present value of its future lease payments, including fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less 
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, amounts expected to 
be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is 
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term 
reflects the lessee exercising that option. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the 
lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the 
lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic 
environment with similar terms and conditions. The non-cash interest expense on the lease liability is recorded in 
the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss within interest expense. 

                                                                                  
Deposits from franchisees 
The development process of a new or to be renovated café requires a deposit from a franchisee at the outset. 
Deposits from franchisees are applied against the cost of constructing a new café or the renovation of an existing 
café. 
 
Revenue recognition 
Revenue is recognized when it is determined that performance obligation has been fulfilled, the sales price is fixed 
or determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured.  Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other revenue related 
concessions. Included in revenue for the Second Cup discontinued operations is the following: 
 
(i) Royalties 
Royalty revenue from franchised cafés, which are based on agreed percentage royalty rates of the franchise location 
sales as they happen.  Revenue is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant 
agreement. 
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(ii) Services and other 
Services and other consists of initial franchise fees, renewal fees, transfer fees earned on the sale of cafés from one 
franchisee to another, Co-op Fund contributions, construction administration fees, purchasing coordination fees, 
and other ancillary fees (such as IT support and training fees). 
 
Under a franchise agreement, the Company provides the franchisee with (i) a franchise license to use the 
Company’s intellectual property and advertising and promotion management, (ii) pre-opening services, such as 
training and inspections, and (iii) ongoing services, such as development of training materials, menu items and café 
monitoring and inspections. The services provided are highly interrelated and constitute the Company’s 
performance obligations under the term of franchise agreement.  For fiscal years 2019 and 2020, franchise fees and 
renewal fees have been recognized over the term of franchise agreements in accordance with IFRS 15. 

The Company receives food and beverage, and product and service coordination fees relating to agreements with 
vendors.  Fees are generally earned based on the value of purchases during the period.  Agreements that contain an 
initial upfront fee, in addition to ongoing fees are generally recorded to income over the term of the respective 
agreement. 

Included in revenue related to continuing operations is the following: 

(iii) Company-owned cafés and product sales 
Company-owned cafés, dispensaries and product sales revenue includes the sale of goods from Company owned 
cafés and retail cannabis dispensaries, products sold online through the Company’s website, as well as products 
sold in grocery stores through wholesale distribution channels and third party licensing agreements.  Revenue is 
recognized at a point in time when the services are rendered, and the product is sold to the end consumer.  Payment 
is collected at the time of sale and the consideration received is unconditional. 
 
Operating costs and expenses 
Included in operating costs and expenses for the Second Cup discontinued operations is the following: 

(i) Franchise expenses 
Franchise costs represent the cost of direct labour to support the network, Co-op Fund expenses, travel and 
franchisee meetings, business development initiatives as well as professional fees directly related to franchise 
operations. 
 
Included in operating costs and expenses related to continuing operations is the following: 

 (ii) Company-owned cafés and cost of product sales  
Cost of product sales represents the product cost of goods sold in Company-operated cafés and retail cannabis 
dispensaries and through the wholesale grocery channel, as well as online sales generated through the Company’s 
website, plus the cost of direct labour to prepare and deliver the goods to the customers in the Company-operated 
cafés and retail cannabis dispensaries and any occupancy related costs. 
 
 (iii) General and administrative expenses 
General and administrative costs include labour and related expenses for head office, professional fees not 
directly attributable to franchise operations and occupancy costs. 
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f. Directors’ deferred share unit plan 

Units granted under the Directors’ deferred share unit plan have graded vesting for each month of service completed 
over the course of one year. Units are paid out in cash upon the termination of the director.  Units are granted based 
on a weighted average price of the Company’s shares on the five most recent days preceding the grant date.  The 
fair value of the grants is amortized over the respective vesting period using the graded amortization method.  
Compensation expense is adjusted for changes in fair value of the Company’s share price thereafter. Any dividends 
paid during the vesting period will be accrued based on the total number of units granted. Amounts recognized are 
recorded in general and administrative expenses. 
 
Recorded values of the plan are presented as accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the consolidated statements 
of financial position. 

 
g. Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with IFRS 9, the loss allowance for a financial instrument is calculated at an amount equal to 12-
month expected credit losses, or lifetime expected credit losses if there has been a significant increase in the credit 
risk on the instrument. 
 
h. Impairment of non-financial assets  

Property and equipment, intangible assets without indefinite lives, and right-of-use assets (resulting from the 
Company’s corporate owned cafés and retail cannabis dispensaries, and lease commitments) are tested for 
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. Assets 
with indefinite lives are subject to an annual impairment test or any time an impairment indicator exists.  The year 
end date has been selected as the mandatory annual test date. 
 
For the purpose of measuring recoverable amounts, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 
separately identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from their assets or group of 
assets, which represent a CGU. The recoverable amount of each particular CGU is the higher of its fair value less 
costs of disposal and value in use.   
 
The impairment analysis involves comparing the carrying value of the CGUs with their estimated recoverable 
amounts.  An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the CGU’s carrying value exceeds its 
recoverable amount.  Impairment losses for a CGU reduce first the carrying value of any goodwill allocated to that 
CGU. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the CGU. Impairment losses, other 
than goodwill impairment, are evaluated for potential reversals when events or circumstances warrant such 
consideration. 
 
i. Related parties 

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is considered related to the Company if such 
party or the Company has the ability to, directly or indirectly, control or exercise significant influence over the 
other entity’s financial and operating decisions, or if the Company and such party are subject to common influence. 
Related parties may be individuals or other entities and include members of key management of the Company. All 
transactions with related parties are recorded at fair value. 
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j. Share-based compensation 

For share option awards granted as part of the stock option plan, a fair value is determined at the date of grant 
and that fair value is recognized in the consolidated financial statements over the vesting period. Proceeds arising 
from the exercise of share option awards are credited to share capital, as are the recognized grant-date fair values 
of the exercised share option awards.  Share option awards that are determined to be settled on a net-equity basis 
are accounted for as equity instruments.  Share option awards that are determined to be settled on a net-cash 
settlement basis are accounted as liability instruments.  The stock option plan was introduced in May 2014, and 
was since Amended and Restated at the Annual and Special Meeting of Shareholders in fiscal 2020. The 
Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan is substantially the same as the original Stock Option Plan, except for 
amendments, including: the replacement of the fixed limit of 990,304 Shares issuable under the Stock Option 
Plan with a new limit consisting of 10% of the total issued and outstanding Shares of the Corporation, effectively 
converting the Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan into an “evergreen” plan.  

 
k. Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and use of judgement 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions and 
use judgement in applying its accounting policies and in determining estimates and assumptions about the future.  
Estimates and other judgements are continuously evaluated and are based on management’s experience and other 
factors, including expectations about future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future 
periods affected.  The accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. 
 
The following are examples of areas of critical estimates, assumptions and judgements the Company makes in 
determining the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements: 

 
● impairment charges and/or the determination of the recoverable amounts of tangible and intangible assets 

subject to depreciation, amortization, or with indefinite lives, including the Company’s right-of-use assets, 
property, equipment, trademark and goodwill. Management has assessed the recoverable amounts after noting 
indicators of impairment as a direct result of the COVID-19 pandemic; 

● the derivation of deferred income tax assets and liabilities; 
● the estimated useful lives of assets; 
● the allowance for credit losses; 
● the fair value of intangible assets acquired in business combinations; and 
● the ability of the Company to remain a going concern 
 
(i) Impairment charges 
Impairment analysis is an area involving management judgement in determining the recoverable amount of an 
asset. The recoverable amount of a cash generating unit (“CGU”) is calculated as the higher of the fair value less 
costs of disposal, and its value in use.  Value in use is determined by estimating the net present value of future cash 
flows derived from such assets using cash flow projections that have been discounted at an appropriate rate and 
based on a market participant’s view. In calculating the net present value of the future cash flows, certain 
assumptions are required to be made in respect of highly uncertain matters including:   

 
● growth in total revenue; 
● change and timing of cash flows such as the increase or decrease of expenditures; 
● selection of discount rates to reflect the risks involved; 
● applying judgement in cash flows specific to CGUs; and 
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● estimating the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the future business operations of the Company, including 
the impact on the ability to grow revenue and cash flow. 

 
Changing the assumptions selected by management, in particular the revenue projections, discount rates and the 
growth rates used in the cash flow projections, could significantly affect the impairment evaluations and 
recoverable amounts. 
 
The Company’s impairment tests include significant assumptions related to the scenarios discussed above.  

(ii) Deferred income taxes 
 
The timing of reversal of temporary differences and the expected income allocation to various tax jurisdictions 
within Canada affects the effective income tax rate used to compute the deferred income taxes. Management 
estimates the reversals and income allocations based on historical and budgeted operating results and income tax 
laws existing at the reporting dates. In addition, management occasionally estimates the current or future 
deductibility of certain expenditures, affecting current or deferred income tax balances and expenses. 

 
(iii) Estimated useful lives 
The useful lives of property and equipment are based on the period during which the assets are expected to be 
available-for-use. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for depreciation of property and equipment for 
any period are affected by these estimated useful lives. It is possible that changes in these factors may cause 
significant changes in the amount of depreciation recorded in respect of the Company’s property and equipment in 
the future. 
 
(iv) Allowance for credit losses 
In accordance with IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”), the Company has recorded an allowance for forward-
looking expected credit losses (“ECL”) for all loans and other debt financial assets that are not held at fair value 
through profit and loss. 
 
The Company notes that its cash equivalents and short-term investments are high-grade investments that are held 
with reputable financial institutions.  As such, these assets are considered to be low credit risk investments. 
 
For lease receivables, the Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company’s historical 
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.  

      
(v) Fair value of intangible assets acquired in a business combination 
Management applied significant judgement in estimating the fair value of the intangible asset. To estimate the 
fair value of the trademarks, management, with the assistance of external valuation experts, used the royalty 
relief method to value the trademarks using a discounted cash flow model. Management developed significant 
assumptions related to revenue projections and growth rates, royalty rate and the discount rate. 
 
l. Changes in accounting policy 

During the year, the Company adopted the COVID-19-related rent concessions - amendments to IFRS 16. As a 
result, the Company has applied the optional practical expedient to elect to account for all eligible COVID-19 
related rent concessions as if they were not lease modifications. The Company has accounted for these lease 
concessions as variable lease payments, resulting in an amount of $270 being recognized in Company-owned cafés 
and cost of product sales in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss. 
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6. Share capital 

The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares. Common shares are classified as 
equity and have no par value. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new common shares are shown 
in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. 
 
On December 2, 2016, the Company replaced its credit facility with another credit facility. The facility had a face 
value of $8 million with SPE Finance LLC, an entity owned by four shareholders, which include Second Cup’s 
Directors, Michael Serruya, Aaron Serruya and their two brothers (each of whom owns 25% of the entity). On 
August 10, 2017, the Company issued 4,210,528 common shares and 300,000 warrants of Second Cup to the four 
shareholders of the Lender as part of a transaction that extinguished its $8 million debt. The underlying warrants, 
which were included in shareholders equity, expired on December 2, 2020 in accordance with the terms of the 
agreement signed. 
 
On December 18, 2018, the Company announced that the Toronto Stock Exchange (the “TSX”) had approved its 
notice of intention to make a normal course issuer bid for a portion of its common shares commencing December 
20, 2018 and ending on December 19, 2019 or such earlier time that the Company completes its purchases pursuant 
to the normal course issuer bid or provides notice of termination. During this period, the Company repurchased 
60,335 common shares for an aggregate total value of $115. 
 
On July 3, 2019, in accordance with the terms of the employment agreement with the Company’s President and 
CEO, the Company issued Mr. Steven Pelton 515,241 common shares in the capital of the Company at $1.70 per 
share. Mr. Pelton paid $200 in cash for 117,641 shares and 397,600 shares were paid with the proceeds of two 
loans advanced to Mr. Pelton by the Company – a five-year loan of $500 repayable in June 2024 and a one-year 
loan of $176 repayable in June 2020, both loans accruing interest at 4.0% per annum. The loan of $176 plus accrued 
interest was repaid by Mr. Pelton on June 30, 2020 in accordance with the terms of the employment and loan 
agreement. 
 
On January 9, 2020, the Company completed the acquisition of Ottawa-based Bridgehead Coffee. As a part of the 
purchase consideration paid to acquire Bridgehead, the Company issued 2,521,069 common shares of Aegis Brands 
Inc. valued at $3.3 million, which represents the fair value of the stock as at the valuation date of January 8, 2020. 
 
Shares outstanding at the fiscal year ended December 26, 2020 are 22,916,028 (2019 – 20,394,959).  

 
7. Management of capital 

The Company’s objectives relating to the management of its capital structure are to: 
 

● safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern; 
● maintain financial flexibility in order to preserve its ability to meet financial obligations; and 
● deploy capital to provide an adequate return to its shareholders. 
 
The Company’s primary uses of capital are to finance increases in non-cash working capital, capital expenditures, 
and other corporate purposes. 
 
On December 7, 2020, the Company entered into a loan agreement with CWB Franchise Finance (“CWB”), a 
division of the Canadian Western Bank Financial Group, consisting of a revolving credit facility (“credit facility”) 
of $4.0 million at the financing rate of Prime + 3.20%. Refer to note 16 for more information. 
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The revolving credit facility is secured by the assets of the Second Cup and Bridgehead businesses and is to be 
used for general corporate purposes. 

 
8. Financial instruments and financial risk management 

Financial instruments 
The following summarizes the nature of certain risks applicable to the Company’s financial instruments: 

 
Financial instrument Risks 
  
Financial assets  
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash 

Credit and interest rate 
Credit and interest rate 

Trade and other receivables Credit and interest rate 
Notes and leases receivable Credit and interest rate 
Warrants Credit, liquidity, and interest rate 
  

        Financial liabilities  
  

        Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Liquidity, currency, and commodity 
Contingent consideration Liquidity 
Provisions Liquidity 
Other liabilities Liquidity 
Short-term debt Liquidity 
Deposits from franchisees 
Lease liabilities 
 

Liquidity 
Liquidity 
 

  
Fair value of financial instruments 
The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade and other receivables, accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities, provisions, other liabilities and gift card liability approximate their fair values due to their short-
term maturity. The fair value of the long-term debt represents the actual principal amount drawn from the 
Company’s revolving line of credit facility, plus accrued interest. The credit facility has a maturity date of 
December 7, 2022. The carrying value of notes and leases receivable approximates their fair value as the implicit 
interest used to discount the base value is considered to be based on an appropriate credit and risk rate pertaining 
to the debtor.  
 
The fair value of warrants was determined using the Black-Scholes pricing model. This valuation model requires 
five input variables: the exercise price of the warrants, the current price of the underlying stock, the time to 
expiration, the risk-free interest rate, and the stock’s volatility. The stock’s volatility was adjusted at year end for 
industry specific factors and other considerations to determine the fair value of the warrants.   
 
Financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are to be categorized in 
Levels 1 to 3 of the fair value hierarchy, based on the degree to which the fair value is observable. The three 
levels of the fair value hierarchy are: 
 
● Level 1 - inputs derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
● Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 

either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and 
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● Level 3 - fair value derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not 
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

 
The Company has not transferred any financial instruments between Levels 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy 
during the 52 weeks ended December 26, 2020. 
 
Credit risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk of an unexpected loss if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligation. 
 
a. Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash 
Credit risk associated with cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash is managed by ensuring these assets are 
placed with major financial institutions that have been assigned high credit ratings.  

 
b. Trade and other receivables, notes and leases receivable 
Trade and other receivables and notes and lease receivable primarily comprise amounts due from franchisees. 
Credit risk associated with these receivables is monitored as a result of the review and evaluation of franchisee 
account balances beyond a particular age.  Prior to accepting a franchisee, the Company undertakes a detailed 
screening process that includes the requirement that a franchisee has sufficient financing. The risk is further 
mitigated due to a broad franchisee base that is spread across the country, which limits the concentration of credit 
risk. 
 
Other receivables may include amounts owing from large organizations where often those organizations have a 
simultaneous vendor relationship with the Company’s franchisees. Credit risk is mitigated as a result of the 
Company directing and maintaining certain controls over the vendor relationship with the franchisees.  

 
The Company has applied IFRS 9’s simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime expected credit 
losses. Consistent with the prior fiscal year, the Company has leveraged a provision matrix that is based on the 
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic 
environment. 
 
Liquidity risk 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company cannot meet a demand for cash or fund its obligations as they come due. 
Liquidity risk also includes the risk of not being able to liquidate assets in a timely manner at a reasonable price. 
Liquidity risk is managed through regular monitoring of forecast and actual cash flows, monitoring maturity dates 
of financial assets and liabilities, and also the management of the Company’s capital structure and debt leverage.  
The Company’s main source of income is corporate café sales, sales from its company-owned retail cannabis 
dispensaries of cannabis products and accessories, and other sale of goods and services.  
 
The Company will receive $14 million in cash on closing (subject to customary closing conditions and shareholder 
approval), which will strengthen its statement of financial position and its ability to meet commitments and 
obligations post-closing of the transaction. 
 
Commodity and currency risk 
 
The Company purchases certain products, such as coffee, in U.S. dollars, thereby exposing the Company to risks 
associated with fluctuations in currency exchange rates. The Company is also directly and indirectly exposed to 
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the commodity market risk. The exposure relates to the changes in coffee commodity prices given it is a material 
input for product offerings. The direct exposure pertaining to the wholesale business is mitigated given that the 
Company has the ability to adjust its sales price if commodity prices rise over a threshold level. This risk is 
mitigated by entering fixed price purchase commitments through coffee commodity brokers and by having the 
ability to adjust retail selling prices. 
 
9. Trade and other receivables, notes and leases receivable  

a. Trade and other receivables 
 
An analysis of aging of trade and other receivables from the billing date net of loss allowances are as follows: 
 

  0-30 Days  31-60 Days    61-90 Days  > 90 Days  Total 
           

Trade receivables - 
gross amount as at  
December 26, 2020 

$ 181 $ 115 $ 110 $ 738 $ 1,144 

Other receivables - 
gross amount as at 
December 26, 2020 
(note 2) 

 775  -  -  22  797 

Loss allowance  -  -  -  (714)  (714) 
           
Net amount 2020 $ 956 $ 115 $ 110 $ 46 $ 1,227 
           
           
Trade receivables - 
gross amount as at  
December 28, 2019 

$ 2,013 $ 129 $ 87 $ 2,152 $ 4,381 

Loss allowance  (33)  (21)  (56)  (1,957)  (2,067) 
           
Net amount 2019 $ 1,980 $ 108 $ 31 $ 195 $ 2,314 

 
Trade and other receivables include a combined loss allowance of $714 (December 28, 2019 - $2,067).  Credit 
terms vary by customer in the range of 30 to 90 days. The net amount due of $46 aged over 90 days has no specific 
terms of repayment.  

   2020  2019 
      
    Trade and other receivables $ 1,941 $ 4,381 

Less: Loss Allowance   (714)  (2,067) 
     
Net trade and other receivables   $ 1,227 $ 2,314 
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b. Notes and leases receivable 
 

    2020   2019 
      
 Notes and other lease receivable – POS systems $ 114 $ 12,004 
 Less: Loss Allowance – POS systems  (83)  (85) 
 Less: Loss Allowance  -  (3,500) 
     

Notes and leases receivable – current  31  8,419 
     
 Notes and other lease receivable  -  4 
 Leases receivable   162  42,917 
 Less: Loss Allowance   -  (263) 

     
Notes and leases receivable – long-term  162  42,658 
     
Notes and leases receivable $ 193 $ 51,077 

 
The notes and other leases receivable balance for fiscal 2020 is made up of (1) notes receivable on point-of-sale 
systems (“POS”) leased to certain franchisees by the Company and (2) leases receivables related to head leases the 
Company has for franchise locations. 
 
The net balance of the notes receivable of $9 as of December 26, 2020, is based on the point sale systems leased 
to certain franchisees by the Company. This includes a combined loss allowance of $83 (December 28, 2019 - 
$89). The payment maturity dates of the notes receivable are as follows: 
 

  < 90 Days  90 Days 
to < 1 
year  

  1 year to 
< 2 years 

 2 years 
and after 

 Total 

           
2020 $ 7 $ 2 $ 0 $ 0 $ 9 
2019 $ 20 $ 13 $ 4 $ 0 $ 37 
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10. Warrants 

On April 12, 2018, the Company and National Access Cannabis Corp. (“NAC”) established a strategic alliance to 
develop and operate a network of NAC-branded recreational cannabis dispensaries. The purpose of the alliance 
was for NAC to apply for licenses to dispense cannabis products and upon receipt, work with Aegis Brands Inc. to 
leverage the Company’s extensive Canadian retail footprint to construct retail dispensaries carrying leading 
cannabis products. As consideration, the Company received 5,000,000 warrants to purchase common shares of 
NAC at a strike price of $0.91 at any time during the period of five years following the issuance date. The strategic 
alliance started on April 12, 2018, and expired on October 17, 2019, in accordance with the agreement signed in 
April 2018. 
 
Since the alliance, NAC was renamed to Meta Growth Corp., which was since acquired by High Tide Inc. All of 
the outstanding common shares of Meta Growth Corp. were acquired at a share exchange ratio of 0.824. The 
warrants issued originally by NAC are now warrants of High Tide Inc. The fair value of the warrants is calculated 
using the Black Scholes model based on a volatility adjusted for industry specific factors and other considerations, 
including the business performance of the High Tide brand. The following table summarizes the Company’s 
warrants measured at fair value: 
 

  2020  2019 
Warrants     
Opening fair value $ 450 $ 1,720 
Fair value of warrants received  -  - 
Change in fair value (note 20)  (328)  (1,270) 
     
Closing fair value $ 122 $ 450 

 
 

11. Inventories 

Inventories relate to goods held for resale, at the corporate cafés, and are comprised of the following: 

    2020   2019 
      
 Merchandise held for resale $ 755 $ 478 

Supplies    64  51 
 $ 819 $ 529 
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12. Property, equipment, and right-of-use assets 

a. Property and Equipment 

  

Leasehold 
improvement
s 

 Equipment, 
furniture, 
fixtures, 
vehicles 
and 
constructio
n in process 

 

 
Computer 
hardware 

 

Total 
          
 Net carrying value         
 As at December 29, 2018         
 Cost $ 2,635 $ 5,132 $ 883 $ 8,650 

Accumulated depreciation  (1,998)  (3,739)  (869)  (6,606) 
         

 As at December 29, 2018  637  1,393  14  2,044 
          
 Additions  806  880  2  1,688 
 Disposals - original cost  (29)  (308)  -  (337) 
 Disposals - accumulated 

depreciation 
 8  157  5  170 

 Impairment charges (note 21)  (326)  (318)  -  (644) 
Depreciation  (346)  (379)  (17)  (742) 
         
As at December 28, 2019  750  1,425  4  2,179 
         

 Net carrying value         
 As at December 28, 2019         

Cost $ 3,086 $ 5,337 $ 886 $ 9,309 
Accumulated depreciation  (2,336)  (3,912)  (882)  (7,130) 
         

 As at December 28, 2019  750  1,425  4  2,179 
          
 Additions  2,465  284  -  2,749 
 Additions from acquisition of 

Bridgehead 
 3,329  1,967  133  5,429 

 Disposals - original cost  -  (31)  -  (31) 
 Disposals - accumulated 

depreciation 
 -  1  -  1 

 Impairment charges (note 21)  (1,182)  (80)  -  (1,262) 
Held for sale – Second Cup Coffee 

Co. 
 (750)  (1,425)  (4)  (2,179) 

Depreciation  (651)  (311)  (29)  (991) 
         
As at December 26, 2020  3,961  1,830  104  5,895 
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 Cost  4,612  2,140  133  6,885 
Accumulated depreciation  (651)  (310)  (29)  (990) 
         
As at December 26, 2020 $ 3,961 $ 1,830 $ 104  5,895 
         

 
b. Right-of-use assets 

  2020  2019 
     
Opening balance $                 12,635 $ 12,252 
Held for sale – Second Cup Coffee Co.    (12,635)  - 
Additions from acquisition of Bridgehead  8,648  - 
Depreciation  (2,061)  (2,294) 
Net additions  6,054  4,562 
Less: leasehold inducements  -  (144) 
Less: asset impairment charges (note 21)  (2,294)  (1,741) 
     
Closing balance $ 10,347 $ 12,635 
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13.  Intangible assets 

  

Trademarks 

 

Goodwill 

  
Software & 

Business 
Licenses  

 

Total 
Net carrying value         

As at December 29, 2018         
Cost $ 31,144 $ - $ 3,053 $ 34,197 
Accumulated amortization  -  -  (2,182)  (2,182) 
         
As at December 29, 2018 $ 31,144 $ - $ 871 $ 32,015 
         
Additions  -  -  350  350 
Disposals – original costs  -  -  (9)  (9) 
Disposals – accumulated amortization  -  -  4  4 
Amortization  -  -  (473)  (473) 
         
As at December 28, 2019 $ 31,144 $ - $ 743 $ 31,887 
         
Cost  31,144  -  3,395  34,539 
Accumulated amortization  -  -  (2,652)  (2,652) 

         
As at December 28, 2019 $ 31,144 $ - $ 743 $ 31,887 
         
Additions 
Additions from acquisition of 
Bridgehead 

 - 
3,911 

 - 
1,352 

 138 
- 

 138 
5,263 

Held for sale – Second Cup Coffee Co.  (31,144)  -  (743)  (31,887) 
Amortization  -  -  (21)  (21) 
         
As at December 26, 2020 $ 3,911 $ 1,352 $ 117 $ 5,380 
         
Cost  3,911  1,352  138  5,401 
Accumulated amortization  -  -  (21)  (21) 

         
As at December 26, 2020 $ 3,911 $ 1,352 $ 117 $ 5,380 
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14. Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and contingent consideration 

Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and contingent consideration consists of: 
   2020  2019 
      
 Accounts payable – trade $ 3,328  $ 1,671  
 Contingent consideration – short-term  437  - 
 Accrued liabilities 

Deferred share unit plan liabilities 
 1,267 

190 
 2,016 

342 
 Accrued salaries, wages, benefits and incentives    280  284 
 Sales tax payable – government remittances payable  -  123 
   

5,502 
  

4,436 
     
Contingent consideration – long-term  566  - 
     
 $ 6,068 $ 4,436 

15.  Provisions and Lease Liabilities 

a. Provisions 

      
Store 
leases 

 

Other  

 

Total 
          

As at December 29, 2018    $ 931 $ - $ 931 
Liabilities in accordance with IFRS 16     (634)  -  (634) 
Net provisions during the period      (97)  359  262 
As at December 28, 2019    $ 200 $ 359 $ 559 
          
Current portion    $ - $ 359 $ 359 
Long-term portion     200  -  200 
As at December 28, 2019    $ 200 $ 359 $ 559 
          
Other provisions     12  -  12 
Net provisions during the period     -  143  143 
As at December 26, 2020    $ 212 $ 143 $ 355 
          
Current portion    $ 12 $ 143 $ 155 
Long-term portion     200  -  200 
As at December 26, 2020    $ 212 $ 143 $ 355 
          

The Company has recorded, as of December 26, 2020, a liability to pay employee severance and restructuring 
payables of $143. 
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b. Lease Liabilities  
 

The following table outlines the total contractual undiscounted real estate lease liabilities as at December 26, 2020: 
 
  As at December 

26, 2020 
   
Year 1  $ 2,456 
Year 2  2,436 
Year 3  2,404 
Year 4  2,319 
Year 5  2,117 
Thereafter 
 

 4,470 
 

Less: future interest expense – corporate cafés  (2,941) 
   
Less: lease liabilities - current  (1,747) 

   
Total leases liabilities $ 11,569 

 
 

16.  Short-Term Debt 

The Company has a secured credit agreement consisting of a revolving credit loan (“Credit Facility”). The 
Company entered into the Credit Facility of $4.0 million with CWB Franchise Finance (“CWB”), a division of the 
Canadian Western Bank Financial Group. The revolving credit facility is secured by the assets of the Second Cup 
and Bridgehead businesses and is expected to be used for general corporate purposes. The Credit Facility will 
mature on December 7, 2022. The continuance of this credit facility will be reviewed on an annual basis. The 
financial covenants are effective as of December 25, 2021. Additional drawdowns on this credit facility currently 
require the approval of CWB due to the impending sale of Second Cup. 
 
On December 7, 2020, the Company entered into two demand promissory notes, each valued at a principal amount 
of $75, with two of its board of directors members, Mr. Alton McEwen and Mr. Stephen Kelley, who is an 
appointee of the Phelan family. The terms, conditions, note issuance and maturity dates are the same for both 
promissory notes. The Company received the total principal amount of $150, which is repayable in full no later 
than three (3) months following the issuance date on December 7, 2020. Each note bears a loan fee of $5; the 
repayment amount shall not bear interest. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the repayment amount is not paid 
within ten (10) business days of demand by the holder, the repayment amount shall then bear interest at a rate of 
fifteen (15%) per annum calculated daily, and effective on the date that is ten (10) business following the date of 
demand by the holders, and until payment of the amount is made by the Company. 

   2020  2019 

Short-term debt, beginning of period $ - $ - 
Short-term debt, proceeds from Credit Facility 
Short-term debt, proceeds from promissory notes 

 501 
160 

 - 

 $ 661 $ - 
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17.  Revenue 

   2020  2019 
      
       Retail cannabis products and accessories 
       Retail coffee products and other 

 1,773 
9,428 

 - 
- 

       Company-owned store and product sales $ 11,201 $ - 
 

 
18.  Operating costs and expenses 

 
 

Company-owned stores and cost of product sales 

  2020   2019   

Cost of product sales                    $  4,719   $ -  
Labour and related expenses    2,499    -  
Occupancy and other     2,004    -  
Depreciation of property and equipment    109     -  
Amortization of intangible assets   21    
Depreciation of right-of-use asset   1,892   - 

    11,244     -  
       

General and administrative expenses       
Labour and related expenses    943     606  
Professional fees and other   1,651     1,189  
Occupancy     12   - 
   2,606   1,795 
       
Other       
Depreciation of property and equipment   714   - 
Depreciation of right-of-use-asset   20   - 
Asset impairment charges   3,556   - 

   4,290   - 
   

 
$ 

 
 

18,140 

  
 

$ 

 
 

1,795 
 

 
The Company incurred total depreciation and amortization costs of $3,073, out of which $317 is a directly 
attributable cost to the Company’s roastery and kitchen which is used to roast coffee beans and make baked goods 
using in-house production facilities. The $317 of costs are part of the cost of product sales, while the remaining 
depreciation costs are separately presented on the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss. 
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19.  Interest and financing costs 

   2020  2019 
      
 Interest expense – lease liabilities $ 745 $ - 
 Interest expense  5  - 
 Interest income – finance leases  (14)  - 

     Financing costs  56  - 
     
 $ 792 $ - 

 
The Company incurred total interest costs on its right-of-use assets of $776, out of which $31 is a directly 
attributable cost to the Company’s roastery and kitchen which is used to roast coffee beans and make baked goods 
using in-house production facilities. The $31 of costs are part of the cost of product sales, while the remaining 
interest costs on its right-of-use assets are separately presented on the consolidated statement of operations and 
comprehensive loss. 

 
20. Other income (expenses) 

   2020  2019 
      
 Government grants from COVID-19 financial relief programs  792  - 
 Acquisition costs  -  (240) 
 Recognition of NAC deferred income   -  (1,399) 
 Change in fair value of equity securities  (328)  1,270 

     Revaluation of contingent consideration  486  - 
     
 $ 950 $ (111) 

 
21. Impairment of assets 

a. Impairment of corporate cafés and retail cannabis dispensaries – leasehold improvements, equipment, 
furniture fixtures, other assets and right-of-use assets 

The impairment analysis is based on historical and forecasted performance measures for each cash generating unit 
(CGU), which in this case refers to each Company-operated café and retail cannabis dispensary with impairment 
indicators. The recoverable amount for these CGUs has been determined using the greater of the value in use and 
the fair value less costs of disposal, using discounted cash flow models.  
 
The significant assumptions applied by management in determining the recoverable amount of each of these CGUs 
included: (i) a discount rate of 12% and (ii) revenue projections which were based on management’s projections 
for 2021 and 2022 factoring in the anticipated pace of recovery from COVID 19 related reductions in revenue, and 
a revenue growth rate of 2% thereafter. Management’s projections around revenue, including the anticipated pace 
of economic recovery from the pandemic are sources of significant estimation uncertainty and changes to those 
assumptions may result in material changes to the recoverable amount of the CGUs. During the 52 weeks ended 
December 26, 2020, the Company recorded on its right-of-use assets, property, leasehold improvements and 
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equipment, impairment charges calculated under the value in use method for 4 Bridgehead locations, and under the 
fair value less costs of disposal method for 1 Bridgehead location and 1 Hemisphere location. The impairment 
charges were $3,556 (2019 - $2,385), out of which $1,262 relates to property, equipment and leasehold 
improvements, and $2,294 relates to the Company’s right-of-use assets.  

b. Impairment of trademarks and goodwill

As at December 26, 2020, the Company performed an impairment test of its trademarks and goodwill. Management 
determined that the CGU for the purpose of testing impairment of goodwill and trademarks is the Bridgehead 
operating segment (the Bridgehead CGU). An impairment charge is recorded when the carrying value of the 
Bridgehead CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount was determined using the value in use 
method using a discounted cash flow model. The significant assumptions used by management in determining the 
recoverable amount included: (i) a discount rate of 11% and (ii) revenue projections which were based on 
management’s projections for 2021 and 2022 factoring in the anticipated pace of recovery from COVID 19 related 
reductions in revenue, and a revenue growth rate of 2% thereafter. Management’s projections around revenue, 
including the anticipated pace of economic recovery from the pandemic are sources of significant estimation 
uncertainty and changes to those assumptions may result in material changes to the recoverable amount of the 
Bridgehead CGU.  

The impairment analysis performed does not indicate that an impairment charge is required against the trademarks 
and goodwill recognized on acquisition of Bridgehead in January of fiscal 2020. 

22. Income taxes

Income taxes, as reported, differ from the amount that would be computed by applying the combined Canadian 
federal and provincial statutory income tax rate to income before income taxes. The reasons for the differences are 
as follows: 

(a) 2020 Income Taxes
Aegis 
Corporate 

Hemisphere 
Cannabis Co. 

Bridgehead 
Coffee 

Total 

Income (loss) before income taxes $ (1,589) $ (1,852) $ (3,340) $ (6,780) 
Combined Canadian federal and 
provincial tax rate 26.5% 26.5% 26.5% 26.5% 

Tax expense (recovery) at statutory 
rate (421) (491) (885) (1,797)
Increased (reduced) by the following 
differences 
Tax assets not recognized -- 546 2,015 2,560 
Non-deductible permanent         
differences 

327 (55) (93) 179 

Other 7 - - 7 

Income tax expense $ (87) $ - $ 1,036 $ 949 

Current income tax expense - - - - 
Deferred income tax expense (87) - 1,036 949 

Income tax expense $ (87) $ - $ 1,036 $ 949 
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(b) 2019 Income Taxes 
  Second Cup 

Coffee Co. 
   
Income (loss) before income taxes $ (1,906) 
Combined Canadian federal and 
provincial tax rate 

  
26.72% 

 
Tax expense (recovery) at statutory 
rate 

  
 

(509) 
Increased (reduced) by the following 
differences 

  

Increase in valuation allowance  - 
Non-deductible permanent           
differences 

 475 

Other  - 
 
Income tax expense 

 
$ 

 
(34) 

   
Current income tax expense  - 
Deferred income tax expense  (34) 
 
Income tax expense 

 
$ 

 
(34) 

 

The blended weighted average statutory income tax rate is an aggregate of the following: 
 

   2020  2019 
     

Basic federal rate  15.00%  15.00% 
Weighted average provincial rate  11.50%  11.72% 
     
Combined Canadian federal and provincial tax rates  26.50%  26.72% 

 
The movement in deferred income tax (assets) and liabilities during the year is as follows: 

 
  Property and 

equipment 
 Trademarks  Warrants  Other  Total 

           
As at December 29, 2018  2,018  4,773  194  (1,394)  5,591 

Charged (credited) to the 
income statement 

$ 
(57) 

 
5 

 
(14) 

 
(1,659) 

 
(1,725) 

Credited to equity  -  -  -  (317)  (317) 
           
As at December 28, 2019  1,961  4,778  180  (3,370)  3,549 

Credited to the income 
statement 

 
(283) 

 
(2,976) 

 
(87) 

 
(2,894) 

 
(5,674) 

Credited to equity  -  -  -  -  - 
           
As at December 26, 2020  2,244  1,802  93  (6,264)  (2,125) 

Included in liabilities of 
discontinued operations held 
for sale 

  
 

     (2,318) 

  
 

(1,802) 

  
 

- 

  
 

4,765 

  
 

645 
  (74)  -  93  (1,499)  (1,480) 
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Deferred tax assets not 
recognized 

  
1,110 

  
- 

  
- 

  
1,450 

  
2,560 

           
Deferred tax liability (asset) 
recognized      

 
$ 

 
1,036 

 
$ 

      
- 

 
$ 
 

 
93 

 
$ 

 
(49) 

 
$ 

 
1,080 

         

23. Basic and diluted loss 

Income (loss) per share is based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.  Share 
option awards to purchase shares are excluded due to anti-dilutive impact.  Basic and diluted income (loss) per 
share is determined as follows: 

   2020  2019 
     

Net loss from continuing operations $ (7,730) $ (1,872) 
     
Weighted average number of shares issued and outstanding  22,839,842  20,135,567 
     
Basic and diluted loss per share from continued operations $ (0.34) $ (0.09) 
     
Net loss from discontinued operations $ (11,892) $ (2,802) 
     
Weighted average number of shares issued and outstanding  22,839,842  20,135,567 
     
Basic and diluted loss per share from discontinued operations $ (0.52) $ (0.14) 
     
     
Total basic and diluted loss per share $ (0.86) $ (0.23) 

 
 
 

    

24.  Supplemental cash flow information 

   2020  2019 
 Changes in non-cash working capital and other inflow (outflow)     
      

Trade, other and lease receivables $       (1,171)  $         85  
Inventories          (278)          (4) 
Prepaid expenses and other assets         119         1 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  1,927   (718) 
Provisions and lease liabilities  (203)   35  
Other liabilities         (44)         (104) 
Deferred income  (148)  (338) 
Gift card liability         162         (221) 
Deposits from franchisees and change in restricted cash         -         1,121 
Income taxes         -         186 

     
 $ 364 $ 43 
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25.  Restricted cash 

The Company has established certain accounts that have been classified as restricted cash primarily representing: 
i) deposits from franchisees for the cost of constructing a new café or the renovation of an existing café, ii) funds 
contributed for use in advertising and promotional programs where the Company is acting as an agent on behalf of 
the Co-op Fund, and iii) a deposit held by the Company’s bank as security for cash management services: 
 

   2020  2019 
      

Development Fund  $         -  $         84  
Co-op Fund  -   238  
Security deposit held by bank          -          243 

     
  Total restricted cash $ - $ 565 

 
The assets of Second Cup Coffee Co. are presented on these consolidated financial statements are held for sale 
due to the pending sale of substantially all the assets of the retail operating brand. 

 
26. Contingencies, commitments and guarantees  

The Company is involved in litigation and other claims arising in the normal course of business. Judgement must 
be used to determine whether or not a claim has any merit, the amount of the claim and whether to record a 
provision, which is dependent on the potential success of the claim. It is believed that no significant losses or 
expenses will be incurred with such claims. However, there can be no assurance that unforeseen circumstances will 
not result in significant costs. The outcome of these actions is not determinable at this time, and adjustments, if 
any, will be recorded in the period of settlement. 
 
Contracts are in place with third-party companies to purchase the coffee that is sold in all cafés. In terms of these 
supply agreements, there is a guaranteed minimum value of coffee purchases of $579 (2019 - $854) for the 
subsequent 12 months. The coffee purchase commitment is comprised of two components: unapplied futures 
commitment contracts and fixed price physical contracts.     
 
27.  Related parties 

Related parties are identified as key management, members of the Board of Directors and shareholders that 
effectively exercise significant influence over the Company. Such related parties include any entities acting with 
or on behalf of the aforementioned parties. In 2017, the Company signed a category exclusive licensing agreement 
with Pinkberry Canada Inc. for the Pinkberry Frozen Yogurt program. The Pinkberry brand is owned by the Serruya 
family who are significant shareholders in the Company. Michael Serruya and Aaron Serruya are members of the 
Board of Directors. 
 
Effective August 1, 2019, Melinda Lee has been assisting management with strategic acquisitions under a 
consulting arrangement and as a result has stepped down as Audit Committee Chairman and committee member. 

 
Compensation of key management 

Key management is defined as the senior management team and the Board of Directors. The following summarizes 
the compensation expense of key management personnel and the composition thereof:  
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  2020  2019 

     
Salaries and short-term employee benefits $ 885 $ - 
Share-based compensation   (118)  - 

     
Total compensation $ 767 $ - 

 
28.  Deferred income 

  2020  2019 
     
Current deferred income – contract liability   -  483 

     
Long term deferred income – contract liability $ - $ 2,178 
     
Total deferred income $ - $ 2,661 

 
 
29.  Segmented reporting 

The Company’s reportable operating segments are organized in a manner that reflects how management views 
those business activities, and the manner that reflects how internal financial results and key performance indicators 
are reported to the Chief Executive Officer. 
 
The following is a summary of each reportable business segment and its business activity. 
 
Second Cup Coffee Co. 
 
Second Cup is a retail operating brand that is owned and operated by Aegis Brands Inc. There are franchised and 
company-operated retail cafés branded as Second Cup across Canada. Second Cup products, such as company 
branded merchandise and coffee products, are also sold on the Company’s website to tap into the e-
commerce/online shopping market. Subject to shareholder approval in early April 2021 and other customary 
closing activities, the Company has entered into a definitive purchase agreement to sell substantially the assets of 
the Second Cup business. The Second Cup Coffee Co. segment is presented as discontinued operations in the 
consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss. 
 
Bridgehead 

 
The Company owns 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of Ottawa-based Bridgehead Coffee, a retail 
coffeehouse which has 20 Company-operated cafés. Bridgehead products, such as coffee and tea products, are also 
sold on the Company’s website. 

 
Hemisphere Cannabis Co. 

 
The Company owns and operates retail cannabis dispensaries under the trade name Hemisphere Cannabis Co. 
Hemisphere is in the business of selling cannabis products and cannabis accessories through its 4 open dispensaries 
in Ontario and selling its products through e-commerce/online channels. Hemisphere is a wholly owned subsidiary 
of the Company. 
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Aegis Corporate 
 
Aegis is a consolidator of brands in the retail food, beverages and cannabis spaces. There are shared groups who 
provide services, such as back-office functions, to support its retail operating brands. 
 
a. Segmented Operations 2020 

  Second Cup 
Coffee Co. 

 Hemisphere 
Cannabis Co. 

 Bridgehead 
Coffee 

 Aegis Brands 
Inc. 

 Total 

           
Revenue $ 15,679 $ 1,773 $ 9,428 $ - $ 26,880 
Cost of sales  (2,645)  (1,105)  (3,614)  -  (7,364) 
Other amounts in loss  (28,285)  (2,520)  (9,154)  (1,589)  (41,548) 
Net loss before income taxes  (15,251)  (1,852)  (3,340)  (1,589)  (22,032) 
Income taxes  3,359  -       (1,036)  87  2,410 
Loss from continuing operations 
after income taxes 

 -  (1,852)  (4,376)  (1,502)  (7,730) 

Discontinued operations after 
income taxes 

 (11,892)  -  -  -  (11,892) 

           
Net loss   (11,892)  (1,852)  (4,376)  (1,502) $ (19,622) 
           

 
b. Segmented Operations 2019 

  Second Cup 
Coffee Co. 

Aegis Brands 
Inc. 

Total  
     

Revenue $ 27,037 - 27,037 
Cost of sales  4,159 - 4,159 
Other amounts in loss  27,271 1,906 29,177 
Net loss before income 

taxes 
 (4,393) (1,906) (6,299) 

Income taxes  1,591 34 1,625 
Loss from continuing 
operations after income 
taxes 

 - (1,872) (1,872) 

Discontinued operations 
after income taxes 

 (2,802) - (2,802) 

     
Net loss  (2,802) (1,872) (4,674) 
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c. Segmented net assets 2020 

   

Cash & cash 
equivalents   

Trade, & 
other 

receivables, 
and other 

assets   
Right-of-
use assets   

Property 
& 

equipment   

Intangible 
assets & 
Goodwill   Total   

AP & 
accrued 

liabilities   
Lease 

liabilities   
Other 

liabilities   Total 

Second Cup 
Coffee Co. 

$ - $ 45,996 $ 8,855 $ 2,059 $ 20,511 $ 77,421 S (4,569) $ (57,299) $ (3,803) $ (65,671) 

Hemisphere 
Cannabis 
Co. 

  120   559   5,168   2,396   18   8,261   (1,960)   (5,686)   (161)   (7,807) 

Bridgehead   645   1,258   5,179   3,499   3,911   14,492   (496)   (7,630)   (1,383)   (9,509) 

Aegis 
Brands Inc. 

  304   727   -   -   1,451   2,482   (2,609)   -   (1,903)   (4,512) 

    1,069   48,540   19,202   7,954   25,891   102,656   (9,634)   (70,615)   (7,250)   (87,499) 

Less: Net 
assets of 
discontinued 
operations 

  -   (45,996)   (8,855)   (2,059)   (20,511)   (77,421)   4,569   57,299   3,803   65,671 

Total $ 1,069 $ 2,544 $ 10,347 $ 5,895 $ 5,380 $ 25,235 $ (5,065) $ (13,316) $ (3,447) $ (21,828) 
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d. Segmented net assets 2019  

 

    
Cash & cash 
equivalents   

Trade, notes 
& leases 

receivable   
Right-of-use 

assets   
Property & 
equipment   

Intangible 
assets   Total   

AP & 
accrued 

liabilities   
Lease 

liabilities   
Other 

liabilities   Total 

Second 
Cup 
Coffee Co. 

$ 11,458 $ 55,193 $ 12,635 $ 2,179 $ 31,887 $ 113,352 S (4,436) $ (68,120) $ (9,623) $ (82,179) 

Total $ 11,458 $ 55,193 $ 12,635 $ 2,179 $ 31,887 $ 113,352 $ (4,436) $ (68,120) $ (9,623) $ (82,179) 
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30. Share-based compensation 

Stock option plan 
 
The stock option plan was introduced in May 2014, and subsequently Amended and Restated at the Annual and 
Special Meeting of Shareholders held virtually on September 24, 2020, to advance the interests of the Company 
by:  
 

• providing eligible persons with incentives;  
• encouraging share ownership by participants;  
• increasing the proprietary interest of participants in the success of the Company; 
• encouraging participants to remain with the Company or its affiliates; and 
• attracting new directors and employees. 

 
Stock options are to be settled on a net-equity basis.  Compensation expense/gain for stock awards is recognized 
using the fair value when the stock awards are granted using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. All options 
vest in tranches and are amortized over the awards’ vesting period using the accelerated expense attribution method. 
Recognition of the expense/gain is recorded as a charge to operating expenses with a corresponding 
increase/decrease to contributed surplus. 
 
The following assumptions have been used to estimate the weighted average fair value per award of $0.15 granted 
as of December 26, 2020: 

 Assumption 
  
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.56 
Volatility (%) 52.60 
Expected term (years) 8.2 

 
The table below summarizes all activities for the year ended December 26, 2020: 

 
 Number of share 

options 
outstanding 

 Weighted average 
share option price 

    
As at December 28, 2019 

 Granted 
          Expired 

1,081,098 
                -        

               (271,098) 

$ 1.92 
- 

2.27 
 
As at December 26, 2020 

 
810,000 

 
$ 

 
1.80 

    
Stock option plan expense during the period  $ 35 

 
The range of exercise prices for share options outstanding at December 26, 2020 is $1.60 to $3.60.  Of the share 
options outstanding, 188,000 share options are exercisable.  The weighted average years to expiration are 
approximately eight years.  Share award options are able to be exercised upon vesting. 
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31. Directors’ deferred share unit plan 

A summary of the status of the Company’s directors’ deferred share unit plan is presented below: 
  

Notional units 
  

Recorded value  
    
Notional units outstanding as at December 29, 2018 180,943 $ 331 
Deferred units granted 37,217  70 
Deferred units paid out (23,536)  (37) 
Change in fair value -  (22) 
    
Notional units outstanding as at December 28, 2019 194,624 $ 342 
    
Expense in the period  $ 11 

 
  

Notional units 
  

Recorded value  
    
Notional units outstanding as at December 28, 2019 194,624 $ 342 
Deferred units granted 5,320  9 
Deferred units paid out -  - 
Change in fair value -  (161) 
    
Notional units outstanding as at December 26, 2020 199,944 $ 190 
    
Recovery in the period  $ (152) 

 
The average fair value price of deferred units granted was $1.72 (2019 - $1.87).  

 
32. Subsequent Events 

The Company has entered into a definitive asset purchase agreement with an affiliate of Foodtastic Inc. to sell 
substantially all of the assets comprising its specialty coffee brand Second Cup Coffee Co. (“Second Cup”). The 
transaction is subject to approval by at least two-thirds of the votes cast by common shareholders of the Company 
at a special meeting expected to be held in early April 2021. The purchase price under the transaction consists of 
$14 million in cash payable on closing (subject to customary closing adjustments), as well as a post-closing earn-
out based on royalties earned from certain Second Cup cafés opened following closing. 
 
On December 31, 2020, Mr. Alan Simpson resigned as a director of the Company. Mr. Simpson joined the Board 
of Directors in December of 2013. 
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CAUTION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

 

Certain statements in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) may constitute forward-looking 

statements within the meaning of applicable securities legislation. The terms the “Company”, “we”, “us”, or 

“our”, or “Aegis Brands” refer to Aegis Brands Inc.  Forward-looking statements include words such as “may”, 

“will”, “should”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “plan”, “intend” and other similar words. These statements 

reflect current expectations regarding future events and financial performance and speak only as of the date of 

this MD&A.  The MD&A should not be read as a guarantee of future performance or results and will not 

necessarily be an accurate indication of whether or not those results will be achieved. Forward-looking 

statements are based on a number of assumptions and are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties 

and other factors, many of which are beyond the Company’s control that may cause the Company’s actual 

results, performance or achievements, or those of the Company’s cafés or retail cannabis dispensaries, or 

industry results to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or 

implied by such forward-looking statements. The following are some of the factors that could cause actual 

results to differ materially from those expressed in the underlying forward-looking statements: competition; 

availability of premium quality coffee beans and cannabis products and accessories; the location of the 

Company’s cafés and retail cannabis dispensaries; the closure of store locations; loss of key personnel; 

compliance with government regulations; potential litigation; the ability to exploit and protect the Company’s 

trademarks; changing consumer preferences and discretionary spending patterns including, but not restricted 

to, the impact of weather and economic conditions on such patterns and the impact of the ongoing COVID-19 

pandemic on consumer buying and spending trends and on the business environment; and the financial 

performance and financial condition of the Company. The foregoing list of factors is not exhaustive, and 

investors should refer to the risks described under “Risks and Uncertainties” below and in the Company’s 

Annual Information Form, which is available at www.sedar.com. 

Although the forward-looking statements contained in this MD&A are based on what management believes 

are reasonable assumptions, there can be no assurance that actual results will be consistent with these 

forward-looking statements and, as a result, the forward-looking statements may prove to be incorrect. 

As these forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this MD&A, the Company does not undertake 

to update any such forward-looking statements whether as a result of new information, future events or 

otherwise.  Additional information about these assumptions and risks and uncertainties is contained in the 

Company’s filings with securities regulators. These filings are also available on the Company’s website at 

www.aegisbrands.ca.  

INTRODUCTION 

 

The following MD&A has been prepared as of March 31, 2021 and is intended to assist in understanding the 

financial performance and financial condition of Aegis Bands Inc. (“Aegis Brands” or the “Company”) for the 

52 weeks ended December 26, 2020, and should be read in conjunction with the Audited Consolidated 

Financial Statements of the Company for the 52 weeks ended December 26, 2020 and the Audited Consolidated 

Financial Statements of the Company for the 52 weeks ended December 28, 2019, and the Annual Information 

Form, which are available at www.sedar.com.  Past performance may not be indicative of future performance. 

All amounts are presented in thousands of Canadian dollars, except number of cafés or stores, per share 

amounts or unless otherwise indicated and have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).  The Company also reports certain non-IFRS measures such as system sales of 

cafés and stores, same café and store sales, operating income (loss), EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA, adjusted net 

income (loss) and adjusted net income (loss) per share that are discussed in the “Definitions and Discussion of 

Certain non-IFRS Financial Measures” in this MD&A. 

 

 

http://www.sedar.com/
http://www.aegisbrands.ca/
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CORE BUSINESS, STRATEGIC IMPERATIVES, AND KEY PERFORMANCE DRIVERS 

Core Business  

 

Aegis Brands Inc. (the “Company”, “Aegis Brands”, formerly “The Second Cup Ltd.”) is a consolidator of 

brands in the food, beverage and cannabis spaces with the mission to allow for independent entrepreneurial 

spirit while providing shared services that encourage unlimited growth. The Company owns and operates the 

Second Cup Coffee Co.TM specialty coffee business as part of a portfolio of brands that also includes 

Bridgehead Coffee (Bridgehead®), and Hemisphere Cannabis CoTM . The Company owns the trademarks, trade 

names, operating procedures and systems and other intellectual property used in connection with the operation 

of these brands in Canada. The retail operating brands hereinafter will be referred to as Second Cup, 

Bridgehead, and Hemisphere, respectively. 

 

During the year, the Company changed its name from “The Second Cup Ltd.” to “Aegis Brands Inc.”. As a 

result of this change, the parent company is now officially “Aegis Brands Inc.”, while its retail brands continue 

to operate as Second Cup Coffee Co.TM, Bridgehead Coffee®, and Hemisphere Cannabis CoTM. 

 

Aegis Brands Inc. is a Canadian public company incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario) 

in 2011. The Company relocated to a new registered office in September 2020 located at 5915 Airport Road, 

Suite 630, Mississauga, ON L4V 1T1. The Company’s website is www.aegisbrands.ca. The Company’s 

common shares trade under the new name and the new Toronto Stock Exchange ticker symbol “AEG” 

(previously “SCU”). Each existing certificate reflecting the Company’s prior name will continue to represent 

a valid certificate until such certificate is transferred, re-registered or otherwise exchanged. 

 

The fiscal year is made up of 52 weeks or 53 weeks ending on the last Saturday of December.  Fiscal year 2020 

consists of 52 weeks. 

 

Operating Brands 

 

As of the end of the fiscal year, the Company owned and operated three retail operating brands. There were 

216 cafés operating under the trade name Second Cup Coffee Co., out of which 27 were Company-owned and 

the balance were operated by franchisees. Bridgehead has 20 Company-owned coffeehouses including its 

flagship roastery, all of which continue to operate under the Bridgehead brand. During the fiscal year, the 

Company opened 4 retail cannabis dispensaries which operate under the brand Hemisphere Cannabis Co. 

 

Strategic Imperatives and Key Performance Drivers 

 

Aegis Brands was created with the vision of building a portfolio of brands that can grow and flourish by 

leveraging expertise developed over 40 years in the Canadian retail and foodservice industry. Aegis will 

continue to focus on its key strategies which include: the growth and expansion of its retail operating brands 

through retail and ancillary channels and the pursuit of strategic acquisitions in retail and foodservice. 

 

In February of 2021, the Company entered into a definitive purchase agreement to sell substantially all of the 

assets comprising its Second Cup Coffee Co. retail operating brand. Subject to shareholder approval and 

closing activities, the Company will receive $14 million in cash (subject to customary closing adjustments) 

from the sale of Second Cup, which will significantly strengthen the Company’s financial position and its 

ability to carry out its strategic objectives. The pending sale has been discussed in-depth in subsequent sections 

of this report. 

 

The Company is actively engaged in a brand strategy review to identify and test new innovations to 

aggressively grow café and retail cannabis dispensaries, improve the economic model of its retail stores, as 

well as engage in a strategic review to chart the way forward as the economic impacts of COVID-19 continue 

to resonate through 2021. 
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HIGHLIGHTS OF SIGNIFICANT EVENTS 

Statement on COVID-19 

 

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a strain of novel coronavirus 

disease, (“COVID-19”), a global pandemic. Since then, the outbreak has spread on a global scale, causing 

companies and various international jurisdictions to impose restrictions, such as quarantines, closures, 

cancellations and travel restrictions. While some of these restrictions have since been lifted to varying degrees 

across provinces in Canada (particularly during the summer of 2020), the case count continues to be a cause of 

concern, along with the additional questions and uncertainty as a result of the emergence of the COVID-19 

variants. Due to these reasons, government and business enforced restrictions continue to be in effect to varying 

degrees across parts of Canada. 

 

Through the 52-week period, a majority of the Company-operated and franchise locations continued to be 

negatively impacted by the decline in consumer foot traffic especially notable in downtown city areas, scaled 

down nature of store operations due to closure of dining space for periods of time, and the general shift in 

consumer spending patterns in the retail industry. As of the close of fiscal 2020, 33 franchised and company-

owned cafés, representing 14% of the Company’s café and store network, were temporarily suspended for 

business operations. There were 203 operating cafés and 4 open retail cannabis dispensaries which reported 

sales during the 52-week period, representing 86% of the Company’s franchise and company-owned store 

network. The number of open and temporarily suspended locations continued to fluctuate through the 52-week 

period primarily due to government and business enforced restrictions as a result of the pandemic. 

 

The temporary and permanent store closures, and restricted store operations as a result of the circumstances 

described above, has significantly reduced sales and impacted the Company’s cash flows in fiscal 2020.  The 

decrease in sales and profitability is considered an indicator of impairment by the Company. The Company has 

also considered the uncertainty in the current economic environment, the impact of any emergence of the 

COVID-19 variants to the Company’s cash flows, timing and ability to return to profitability and has 

determined that there is uncertainty related to the Company’s cash availability to fund its operations for the 

next 12 months on its own.  The Company has determined that these are material uncertainties that may cast 

significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as going concern.  In assessing whether the going 

concern assumption was appropriate, the Company took into account all relevant information available about 

the future, which was at least, but not limited to, the 12-month period following the date of approval of the 

Company’s financial statements. 

 

As a result of the negative impacts outlined above considered as an indicator of impairment by management, 

the Company has performed an assessment of the recoverability of its assets, including its trademarks, right-

of-use assets, property and equipment. Following this assessment, the Company has recognized an impairment 

charge against its assets during the 52-week period. In addition to this, the Company has reviewed the expected 

credit losses on amounts owed to the Company and has recorded additional expected credit losses in accordance 

with IFRS 9 on its lease receivables based on forward-looking factors. 

 

In an effort to mitigate the risks associated with the pandemic and in response to the reduction of sales, the 

Company actively reduced its operating costs by halting discretionary capital expenditures and significantly 

lowering its staff compensation costs through measures including: the temporary and permanent layoffs of 

staff, temporary pay reduction for employees at the corporate office, and the temporary suspension of 

compensation for the Company’s Board members. The Company has also reduced forward inventory 

purchases, reduced discretionary expenditures, and continues to work with vendors and suppliers to further 

reduce costs and seek payment abatement and deferrals, where possible, as a way to manage liquidity. 

 

Through fiscal 2020, the Company continued to be engaged in discussions with landlords, both on its own 

behalf and on behalf of its franchisees, to request abatements and/or deferrals of rent, and, where appropriate, 

to discuss potential amendments to or the termination of lease agreements for certain underperforming Second 

Cup café locations. The Company has made progress on its discussions with landlords and continues to engage 
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in discussions to lower its occupancy costs in the face of reduced sales as a result of the ongoing COVID-19 

pandemic. 

 

Through fiscal 2020, the Company continued to evaluate all available, applicable government relief programs, 

including the Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy (CEWS), Canada Emergency Rent Subsidy (CERS) and the 

Canada Emergency Commercial Rent Assistance (CECRA) program, which are financial relief measures 

initiated by the Federal Government of Canada in response to the economic impacts of the COVID-19 

pandemic. The Company determined that it was eligible to qualify for all of the above relief financial programs 

in fiscal 2020. 

 

For the 52 weeks period ended December 26, 2020, the Company applied for $3,747 of wage subsidies in 

connection with the CEWS financial relief program, of which $318 was received in cash following the 

completion of its financial year. Of the $3,747, $1,530 was claimed by Bridgehead with $163 included in trade 

and other receivables and $2,217 was claimed by Second Cup Co. with $196 included in trade and other 

receivables on the consolidated statement of financial position. The Company has recorded the wage subsidy 

as a reduction to the eligible remuneration expense incurred by the Company during this period. For the 52 

weeks period ended December 26, 2020, the Company applied for $416 of rent subsidies in connection with 

the CERS financial relief program, which was received in cash following the completion of its financial year. 

Of the $416, $250 was claimed by Bridgehead and $166 was claimed by Second Cup Co. included in trade and 

other receivables on the consolidated statement of financial position. The Company has presented the rent and 

government subsidy as other income, in its consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss. For 

the 52 weeks period ended December 26, 2020, the Company applied for $811 of rent reductions under the 

CECRA financial relief program, in connection with the Company’s lease commitments specific to 

Bridgehead; the amount is comprised of $270 of reductions from its landlords, recorded in the statement of 

operations and comprehensive loss as a reduction to underlying occupancy costs within Company-owned cafés 

and cost of product sales. As part of the same relief program, the Company received $541 of rent reductions 

from the Government of Canada; this has been recorded in the statement of operations and comprehensive loss 

as other income. 

 

The Company continues to proactively manage its cash flow position and liquidity requirements in the face of 

various uncertainties.  On December 7, 2020, the Company entered into a loan agreement with CWB Franchise 

Finance (CWB) pursuant to which a revolving credit facility of $4 million was made available to the Company, 

secured by the assets of Second Cup and Bridgehead. The CWB loan is subject to certain financial covenants 

starting in Q4 2021 and additional draw downs on this credit facility currently require the approval of CWB as 

a result of the impending sale of Second Cup. In addition to the revolving credit facility with CWB, the 

Company continues to pursue options to obtain additional capital to pursue long-term opportunities, including, 

but not limited to, further growth in the cannabis sector and future acquisition opportunities.  In accordance 

with the terms of the agreement to sell substantially all assets comprising its Second Cup specialty coffee 

business (note 4), the Company is expected to receive $14 million in cash, subject to the closing of the 

transaction, which will provide additional liquidity and cash to fund the Company’s operations; however, in 

light of this pending sale, the availability of the revolving credit facility with CWB, under the current terms 

and conditions, is not certain at this time should the sale close. In addition, due to the impact of the pandemic 

on cash flows, the ability to meet the financial covenants starting in Q4 2021 is also uncertain. The closing of 

the transaction and receipt of the $14 million proceeds is expected to strengthen the balance sheet of the 

Company and its ability to meet obligations as they come due, as well as pursue its previously announced 

growth strategy. Although the Company believes the close of the sale is highly probable, there is no assurance 

that the pending sale transaction will close, whether the expected proceeds will be sufficient, or the existing 

CWB facility will continue to be available with its current terms and conditions, to enable the company to 

continue as a going concern. 
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Acquisition of Bridgehead 

On January 9, 2020, the Company completed the acquisition of 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of 

Bridgehead, which is based in Ottawa. The base purchase price consisted of cash consideration of $6.0 million, 

stock consideration of $3.3 million, which represents the fair value of the stock as at the valuation date of 

January 8, 2020, and additional earn out payments of up to $1.5 million based on the profitability of 

Bridgehead’s existing coffeehouses over the next two years. 

 
Held For Sale and Discontinued Operations 

On February 7, 2021, the Company entered into a definitive purchase agreement to sell substantially all of the 

assets comprising its specialty coffee brand, Second Cup Coffee Co. (“Second Cup”), to an affiliate of Quebec-

based Foodtastic Inc. (“Foodtastic”). As at December 26, 2020, the Company is committed to a plan to sell the 

disposal group, comprising the assets and liabilities of Second Cup which are included in the definitive 

purchase agreement (the “Agreement”). The disposal group is expected to be sold to Foodtastic for a sale price, 

as outlined in the Agreement, of $14 million in cash payable on closing (subject to customary closing 

adjustments) as well as a post-closing earn-out based on royalties earned from certain Second Cup cafés opened 

following completion of the sale. The sale of this disposal group is subject to approval by at least two-thirds of 

the votes cast by the Company’s common shareholders at a special meeting of common shareholders scheduled 

to be held on April 7, 2021. The directors and executive officers of the Company and certain other major 

shareholders, collectively holding approximately 43% of the Company’s issued and outstanding common 

shares, have entered into support agreements agreeing to vote their common shares in favour of the transaction. 

Management has assessed that the Second Cup assets met the criteria to be classified as held for sale as at 

December 26, 2020 and it is unlikely that significant changes to the transaction will be made or that the plan 

will be withdrawn. The disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition, subject to terms 

that are usual and customary for sales of this nature in the retail industry, and the sale is highly probable based 

on the factors above. In accordance with IFRS 5 (“Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 

Operations”), the Company has classified this disposal group as held for sale as its carrying amount will be 

recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. 

 

The Company has measured the disposal group classified as held for sale at the lower of its carrying amount 

and fair value less costs to sell being $14 million less $500 in estimated costs to sell and $1,750 estimated in 

working capital adjustments. As at December 26, 2020, the carrying value of the Second Cup disposal group 

was $23 million, which gave rise to an impairment loss of $11.2 million. 

 

As the disposal group referenced above represents a major line of business, and the Company has a single 

coordinated plan to dispose of this separate major line of business. As such, the Company has presented the 

disposal group as discontinued operations as a single amount in the consolidated statement of operations and 

comprehensive loss, comprising the post-tax loss of discontinued operations and post-tax loss recognized on 

the measurement to fair value less costs to sell. The Company has further disclosed details of the discontinued 

operations in note 29 in its annual consolidated financial statements. 
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CAPABILITIES 

This section documents factors that affect the Company’s capabilities to execute strategies, manage key 

performance drivers and deliver results. This section is qualified by the section “Caution Regarding Forward-

Looking Statements” at the beginning of this MD&A. 

 

The Bridgehead Brand 

The brand - Bridgehead® – reflects a commitment to deliver original and premium Fairtrade coffee brands, 

with 100% of its coffee certified Fairtrade and 100% of its coffee made from organic certified green coffee. A 

proud Canadian company, Bridgehead has 20 company‐owned coffeehouses in Ottawa, including its flagship 

roastery, all of which continue to operate under the Bridgehead name. 

 

All Bridgehead coffeehouses serve baked goods and fresh foods made daily in the company’s Kitchen and 

Bakery, using local and seasonal ingredients. 

 

The Bridgehead Brand – People 

 

There are a total of 330 team members who continue to work for the Bridgehead brand. Team members range 

from baristas, managers to support personnel employed at the Company’s head office. 

 

The Bridgehead Brand - Products 

 

Bridgehead takes pride in leveraging its experience and knowledge of the coffee business to serve fresh and 

locally roasted coffee prepared to the industry’s highest technical standards, including the preparation of 

espresso to the technical standards of the World Barista Championship. 

 

Bridgehead operates its own Scratch Bakery and sources fresh ingredients from over fifteen different local 

farmers and suppliers to make delicious foods and products for its customers. 

 

The Hemisphere Brand 

The brand – Hemisphere Cannabis Co. TM – reflects a commitment to deliver a premium shopping experience 

in the recreational retail cannabis market for seasoned users and beginners. Hemisphere has four open locations, 

with three retail dispensaries operating in Toronto, and one location in the city of Ottawa.   

 

Hemisphere received its retail operator license from the Alcohol and Gaming Commission of Ontario (AGCO) 

in April 2020. The Company plans to open three new retail cannabis dispensaries in fiscal 2021, as well as to 

submit applications to the AGCO to obtain the retail store authorization for additional locations that the 

Company expects to open in the latter half of fiscal 2021. 

 

The Hemisphere Brand – People 

 

Hemisphere employs friendly and knowledgeable budtenders who have been trained to provide a guided 

selection experience. Hemisphere’s store is organized based on need-state to help create a simple to navigate 

shopping experience for its consumers; this is especially important given the relatively young nature of the 

retail cannabis industry in Canada. 

 

The Hemisphere Brand - Products 

 

Hemisphere is in the business of selling legal recreational cannabis products and accessories, including a 

diverse selection of cannabis flower, concentrates, and infused beverages and edibles. 
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Liquidity, capital resources and management of capital 

 

On December 18, 2018, the Company announced that the Toronto Stock Exchange (the “TSX”) had approved 

its notice of intention to make a normal course issuer bid for a portion of its common shares commencing 

December 20, 2018 and ending on December 19, 2019 or such earlier time that the Company completes its 

purchases pursuant to the normal course issuer bid or provides notice of termination. During this period, the 

Company repurchased 60,335 common shares for an aggregate total value of $115. 

 

On December 2, 2016, the Company replaced its credit facility with another credit facility. The facility had a 

face value of $8 million with SPE Finance LLC (SPE), an entity owned by four shareholders, which include 

Second Cup’s Directors, Michael Serruya, Aaron Serruya and their two brothers (each of whom owns 25% of 

the entity). On August 10, 2017, the Company issued 4,210,528 common shares and 300,000 warrants of 

Second Cup to the four shareholders of the SPE as part of a transaction that extinguished its $8 million debt. 

The underlying warrants, which were included in shareholders equity, expired on December 2, 2020 in 

accordance with the terms of the agreement signed. 

 

On July 3, 2019, in accordance with the terms of the employment agreement with the Company’s new President 

and CEO, the Company issued Mr. Steven Pelton 515,241 common shares in the capital of the Company at 

$1.70 per share. Mr. Pelton paid $200 in cash for 117,647 shares and 397,594 shares were paid with the 

proceeds of two loans advanced to Mr. Pelton by the Company – a five-year loan of $500 repayable in June 

2024 and a one-year loan of $176 repayable in June 2020, both loans accruing interest at 4.0% per annum. The 

loan of $176 plus accrued interest was repaid by Mr. Pelton on June 30, 2020 in accordance with the terms of 

the employment and loan agreement. 

 

On January 9, 2020, the Company paid cash consideration of $6.0 million, stock consideration of 2,521,069 

shares of Aegis Brands Inc., and expects to make earn out payments of up to $1.5 million as contingent 

consideration, to acquire 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of Ottawa-based Bridgehead Coffee 

(“Bridgehead”).  

 

On December 7, 2020, the Company entered into a loan agreement with CWB Franchise Finance (“CWB”), a 

division of the Canadian Western Bank Financial Group, consisting of a revolving credit facility (“credit 

facility”) of $4.0 million at the financing rate of Prime + 3.20%. This credit facility will be available for a 

period of 24 months until its maturity on December 7, 2022. The continuance of this credit facility will be 

reviewed on an annual basis. The revolving credit facility is secured by the assets of the Second Cup and 

Bridgehead businesses and is to be used for general corporate purposes.  Additional drawdowns on this credit 

facility currently require the approval of CWB as a result of the impending sale of Second Cup. 

 

On December 7, 2020, the Company entered into two demand promissory notes, each valued at a principal 

amount of $75, with two of its Board members, Mr. Alton McEwen and Mr. Stephen Kelley, who is an 

appointee of the Phelan family. The terms, conditions, note issuance and maturity dates are the same for both 

promissory notes. The Company received the total principal amount of $150, which is repayable in full no later 

than three (3) months following the issuance date on December 7, 2020. Each note bears a loan fee of $5; the 

repayment amount shall not bear interest. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the repayment amount is not paid 

within ten (10) business days of demand by the holder, the repayment amount shall then bear interest at a rate 

of fifteen (15%) per annum calculated daily, and effective on the date that is ten (10) business following the 

date of demand by the holders, and until payment of the amount is made by the Company. 

 

Competition  

 

The Canadian specialty coffee market is highly competitive and fragmented, with few barriers to entry. There 

are national, regional and local coffee retailers who are specialty coffee providers or quick serve restaurants 

with broad menus. 

 

The Canadian retail cannabis industry is regulated by the Alcohol Gaming Commission of Ontario. In the past 

year, there has been a significant growth in businesses in the retail cannabis industry, which has increased the 
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supply and accessibility of products to consumers. This has resulted in a highly competitive retail cannabis 

market. 

 

Technology 

 

The Company relies heavily on information technology network infrastructure including point of sale system 

(“POS”) hardware and software in cafés and retail cannabis dispensaries, gift and loyalty card transactions, and 

head office (“Aegis Central”) financial and administrative functions. The ability to manage operations 

effectively and efficiently depends on the reliability and capacity of these technology systems, most of which 

are administered by third party suppliers. The Company has made significant investments in POS systems 

across its store network as it relies on the POS system to help analysis for both marketing initiatives and royalty 

calculations. During the year, the Company upgraded its point of purchase or retail POS systems sourced from 

a new third-party supplier to equip its retail Bridgehead cafés with state-of-the-art retail POS infrastructure at 

its locations. 

SEGMENTED INFORMATION AND REPORTING 

The Company’s retail brands, Second Cup, Bridgehead, and Hemisphere operate as independent brands. 

Financial results and business performance indicators are provided to the Chief Executive Officer for each of 

these three retail brands, and hence each brand represents its own legal entity and reportable segment. The 

financial results of the brands are reported on a consolidated basis on these financial statements, with Second 

Cup presented as discontinued operations. 

 

The Company’s consolidated operating revenues comprise royalties from franchised cafés (Second Cup only) 

the sale of goods from Company-operated cafés and retail cannabis dispensaries, the sale of goods through 

retail and other ancillary channels, and other service fees. 

 

Management is organized based on the Company’s operating brands rather than the specific revenue streams. 
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CONSOLIDATED HIGHLIGHTS: CONTINUING OPERATIONS OF BRIDGEHEAD, 

HEMISPHERE CANNABIS CO. AND AEGIS CORPORATE 

 

The following table sets out selected IFRS and certain non-IFRS financial measures of the Company and should 

be read in conjunction with the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the 52 weeks 

ended December 26, 2020. 

 

(In thousands of Canadian dollars, except 

same café and store sales, number of 

cafés and stores, per share amounts, and 

number of common shares.) 

13 weeks ended  52 weeks ended 

December 26, 

2020 

December 28, 

2019 

 December 26, 

2020 

December 28, 

2019 

      

System sales of cafés and stores1 $3,701 -  $11,201 - 

      

Same café and stores sales 1,2 (38.5%) -  (32.1%) - 

      

Number of cafés & stores - end of period 24 -  24 - 

      

Total revenue $3,701 -  $11,201 - 

      

Operating costs and expenses $7,902 $508  $18,140 $1,795 

      

Operating loss1  ($4,201) ($508)  ($6,939) ($1,795) 
      

EBITDA1 ($3,467) ($508)  ($4,182) ($1,795) 

      

Adjusted EBITDA1 ($275) ($508)  ($626) ($1,795) 

      

Net loss and comprehensive loss ($6,141) ($1,053)  ($7,730) ($1,872) 

      

Adjusted net loss and comprehensive  

loss1 

($4,349) ($372)  ($5,124) ($1,790) 

      

Basic and diluted loss per share as  

reported 

($0.27) (0.05)  ($0.34) (0.09) 

      

Adjusted basic and diluted loss per share1 ($0.18) (0.02)  ($0.22) (0.09) 

      

Total assets - end of period $25,235 $113,352  $25,235 $113,352 

      

Number of weighted average common  

shares issued and outstanding 

22,916,028 20,394,959  22,839,842 20,135,567 

 
1See the section “Definitions and Discussion on Certain non-IFRS Financial Measures” for further analysis. 

2Same café & store sales represent the percentage change, on average, in sales at cafés & stores operating system-wide that have been 

open for more than 12 months. This metric is limited to the Bridgehead brand, as the Hemisphere brand started in mid-July of fiscal 

2020, and as such, there is no comparative information available.  Compared with sales of Bridgehead in prior year before acquisition. 
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CONSOLIDATED HIGHLIGHTS: DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS OF SECOND CUP 

The following table sets out selected IFRS and certain non-IFRS financial measures of the Company and should 

be read in conjunction with the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the 52 weeks 

ended December 26, 2020. 

(In thousands of Canadian dollars, except 

same café and store sales, number of 

cafés and stores, per share amounts, and 

number of common shares.) 

13 weeks ended 52 weeks ended 

December 26, 

2020 

December 28, 

2019 

December 26, 

2020 

December 28, 

2019 

System sales of cafés and stores1 $16,285 $36,132 $69,342 $137,757 

Same café and stores sales 1,2 (42.5%) (2.6%) (34.6%) (1.6%) 

Number of cafés & stores - end of period 216 244 216 244 

Total revenue $4,603 $7,605 $15,679 $27,037 

Operating costs and expenses $15,885 $10,813 $30,339 $30,811 

Operating loss1 ($11,282) ($3,208) ($14,660) ($3,774) 

EBITDA1 ($10,691) ($2,299) ($12,329) ($265) 

Adjusted EBITDA1 ($585) $297 ($1,799) $3,336 

Net loss and comprehensive loss ($7,906) ($2,548) ($11,892) ($2,802) 

Adjusted net loss and comprehensive 

loss1 

($621) ($646) ($4,296) ($164) 

Basic and diluted loss per share as  

reported 

($0.35) ($0.13) ($0.52) ($0.14) 

Adjusted basic and diluted loss per share1 ($0.03) ($0.03) ($0.19) ($0.01) 

Total assets - end of period $77,421 $113,352 $77,421 $113,352 

Number of weighted average common 

shares issued and outstanding 

22,916,028 20,394,959 22,839,842 20,135,567 

1See the section “Definitions and Discussion on Certain non-IFRS Financial Measures” for further analysis.
2Same café & store sales represent the percentage change, on average, in sales at cafés & stores operating system-wide that have been 
open for more than 12 months. 



Aegis Brands Inc. 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

 

12 

 

OPERATIONAL REVIEW 

 

Seasonality of system sales of cafés 

Due to the nature of the Retail Foodservice industry, and the Company’s extensive experience in this industry, 

the Company expects there to be an associated seasonality to its sales, specifically the notion that the last fiscal 

quarter will generate higher revenue than other quarters due to the holiday and festive season. In fiscal 2020, 

consumer spending patterns experienced disruption due to the ongoing impacts of the pandemic. This 

disruption of expected trends is reflected in the below table which shows that the first fiscal quarter has 

outperformed all of the other quarters, as the first 2020 quarter was not as impacted by the onset of the COVID-

19 pandemic. 

 

The below table shows the percentage of annual system sales generated from Company-owned Bridgehead 

cafés. The Company has excluded its retail cannabis operating brand, Hemisphere Cannabis Co., from the 

below analysis, as this business segment was in operation for half of fiscal 2020, and not the entire year. 

 

% of Annual system sales of cafés    2020 

First Quarter      34.2 

Second Quarter      13.4 

Third Quarter      24.0 

Fourth Quarter      28.4 

 
   100.0 

 

Store network 

 13 weeks ended  52 weeks ended 

 December 26, 

2020 

December 28, 

2019 

 December 26, 

2020 

December 28, 

2019 

      

Number of locations - beginning of 

period   

252 246  244 262 

Acquired during the period1 -  -  19 - 

Locations opened   3 2  5 5 

Locations closed - (4)  - (23) 

Locations reclassified to discontinued 

operations2  

(231) -  (244) - 

Number of locations - end of period   24 244  24 244 

 
1The Company acquired Bridgehead on January 9, 2020. The 20 Company-owned cafés under the Bridgehead 

brand are included above. 
2Second Cup locations are presented as discontinued operations due to the pending sale of substantially all of 

the assets of this business segment. 

 

The Company ended the 52 weeks ended December 26, 2020 with 24 Company-owned cafés and retail 

cannabis dispensaries. 
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Fourth Quarter – Aegis Brands Inc. 

 

System sales of cafés and stores 

System sales of cafés and stores for the 13 weeks ended December 26, 2020 were $3,701 composed of revenue 

generated from Company-owned and operated Bridgehead cafés as well as Hemisphere retail cannabis 

dispensaries. Both Bridgehead and Hemisphere joined the Aegis family of retail brands in fiscal 2020, and as 

such there is no comparative prior information. 

 

Same café and store sales 

During the Quarter, same café sales at Bridgehead locations decreased by 38.5%, as cafés continued to be 

impacted by the ongoing economic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, including temporary closures and 

significant restrictions on store operations, such as the closure of dining room space and operations limited to 

take-out, delivery and drive-thru. 

 

Analysis of revenue 

The Company generated revenue for the Quarter of $3,701 from its Company-owned and operated locations.  

 

Sales composed of $1,029 were generated through retail cannabis products and accessories at Hemisphere 

Cannabis Co. locations. The Company opened its first two recreational retail cannabis locations in the third 

Quarter of fiscal 2020, and added two locations in the fourth Quarter.  

 

Company-owned and operated Bridgehead coffeehouses generated sales of $2,672 in the Quarter. 

 

As per preceding discussions, sales across both brands continued to be weighed down by drop in consumer 

foot traffic as a direct result of restrictions from the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

Operating costs and expenses 

Operating costs and expenses include the costs of Company-owned stores and product sales, general and 

administrative expenses, loss on disposal of assets, and depreciation and amortization. Operating costs were 

partially reduced by the amount of the financial relief that the Company applied for and received in connection 

with the Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy, the Canada Emergency Commercial Rent Assistance, and the 

Canada Emergency Rent Subsidy programs introduced by the Federal Government in response to the ongoing 

COVID-19 pandemic. People costs also went down due to a reduction in remuneration of Aegis Central staff 

through temporary and permanent layoffs, suspension of compensation for the Board of Directors, and the 

reduction of salaries for certain members of the Company’s Senior Leadership Team. 

 

Total operating costs and expenses for the Quarter totaled $7,902, of which $2,003 is attributable to costs 

incurred in connection with the operations of retail cannabis dispensaries; $5,354 attributable to Company-

owned coffeehouses; and $545 attributable to Aegis Corporate. Aegis Corporate costs are made up of costs 

related to certain administrative functions and public company related expenses. 

 

Company-owned stores and product related expenses for the Quarter were $3,118, of which $1,050 is 

attributable to Hemisphere and $2,068 attributable to Bridgehead.  

 

General and administrative expenses were $857 for the Quarter, of which $321 attributable to Bridgehead and 

$536 is attributable to Aegis. 

 

Depreciation and amortization expense was $735, of which $291 is attributable to Hemisphere, $435 

attributable to Bridgehead and $9 is attributable to Aegis. Total amortization of right-of-use assets was $658 

and the amortization on property and equipment and intangible assets came to $77. 

 

Impairment indicators were identified as a result of the economic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, which 

has resulted in the temporary closures of cafés, and scaled down nature of operations of open cafés. Impairment 

analysis was performed for property and equipment and right-of-use assets as well as on the Company’s 
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trademarks and goodwill recorded on acquisition of Bridgehead. The Company has recorded non-cash asset 

impairment charges of $3,192 in the Quarter against its right-of-use assets and property and equipment, of 

which $662 is attributed to Hemisphere and $2,530 to Bridgehead. 

 

EBITDA  
EBITDA for the Quarter was a loss of $3,467.  Adjusted for impairment charges, EBITDA for the Quarter was 

a loss of $275. 

 

Other income 
Other income was $1,399, composed of $791 of government grants from COVID-19 financial relief programs 

$486 reduction in contingent consideration in accordance with the terms of the Bridgehead purchase agreement 

and $122 in the change in the fair market value of NAC warrants (now converted to High Tide warrants) using 

the Black-Scholes pricing model. 

 

In the prior year’s quarter, the Company incurred other expenses of $929, made up of the change in fair value 

of NAC warrants of $780 and acquisition costs of $240, partially offset against income from the NAC strategic 

alliance of $91. 

 

Interest and Financing Costs 

The Company reported net interest and financing costs of $356. This is composed primarily of interest expense 

recorded on the Company’s lease payments for right-of-use assets recognized in accordance with IFRS 16 of 

$309 as well as financing costs incurred with respect to the short-term debts of the Company of $46. 

 

Net loss 

The Company reported a net loss for the quarter of $6,141 or $0.27 per share. Adjusted for impairment costs, 

government financial relief programs and the revaluation of contingent consideration, the net loss was $4,349 

or $0.18 per share. 

 

Reconciliations of net income (loss) to EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA, adjusted net income (loss) and adjusted 

net income (loss) per share are provided in the section “Definitions and Discussion of Certain non-IFRS 

Financial Measures”. 
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Full Year – Aegis Brands Inc.  

 

System sales of cafés and stores 

System sales of cafés and stores for fiscal 2020 were $11,201 composed of revenue generated from the 

Company’s cafés and retail cannabis dispensaries. Sales were significantly impacted by the ongoing economic 

impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, including the temporary closures of franchised and corporately owned 

cafés and restrictions on store operations (i.e., closure of dining room space and operations limited to take out, 

delivery, and drive-thru). 

 

Same café and store sales 

During the year, same café sales at Bridgehead locations decreased by 32.1% as cafés experienced significant 

disruption in business activities as a result of the ongoing economic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, 

including the temporary closures of stores and restrictions on store operations such as the closure of dining 

room space and operations limited to take-out, delivery and drive-thru. 

 

Analysis of revenue 

The Company generated revenue for the Year of $11,201 from its Company-owned and operated locations. 

 

Sales of $1,773 were generated through the sale of retail cannabis products and accessories at Hemisphere 

Cannabis Co. locations. The Company operates four recreational retail cannabis dispensaries, out of which two 

locations opened the doors for business in the Company’s last fiscal Quarter of 2020. 

 

Company-owned and operated Bridgehead coffeehouses generated sales of $9,428 in the Year. 

 

Sales for the majority of fiscal 2020 continued to be impacted by the ongoing impacts of the COVID-19 

pandemic. 

 

Operating costs and expenses 

Operating costs and expenses include the costs of Company-owned stores and product sales, general and 

administrative expenses, loss on disposal of assets, and depreciation and amortization. Operating costs were 

partially reduced by the amount of the financial relief that the Company applied for and received in connection 

with the Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy, the Canada Emergency Commercial Rent Assistance, and the 

Canada Emergency Rent Subsidy programs introduced by the Federal Government in response to the ongoing 

COVID-19 pandemic. People costs also went down due to a reduction in remuneration of Aegis Central staff 

through temporary and permanent layoffs, suspension of compensation for the Board of Directors, and the 

reduction of salaries for certain members of the Company’s Senior Leadership Team. 

 

Total operating costs and expenses to date were $18,140, out of which $3,345 of costs are attributable to the 

operation of the Company’s recreational retail cannabis dispensaries; $13,095 attributable to Company-owned 

coffeehouses; $1,700 attributable to certain administrative costs and services, as well as public company related 

expenses under Aegis Corporate. 

 

Company-owned stores and product related expenses for the Year were $9,221, of which $2,024 is attributable 

to Hemisphere and $7,197 attributable to Bridgehead. 

 

The Company’s general and administrative expenses for the Year were $2,606, of which $922 is attributable 

to Company-owned Bridgehead coffeehouses; $1,684 attributable to Aegis Corporate, which is a marginal 

decrease in comparison to the $1,795 of general and administrative expenses under Aegis Corporate. 

 

Depreciation and amortization expense was $2,757, of which $659 is attributable to Hemisphere; $2,082 

attributable to Bridgehead; and $16 attributable to Aegis Corporate. Total amortization expense is composed 

of amortization of right-of-use assets of $1,912 and the amortization on property and equipment and intangible 

assets came to $845. 
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Impairment indicators were identified as a result of the economic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic through 

fiscal 2010, which has resulted in the temporary closures of cafés and scaled down nature of operations of open 

cafés. Impairment analysis was performed over the Company’s property and equipment and right-of-use assets, 

as well as on the Company’s trademarks and goodwill recorded on acquisition of Bridgehead. The Company 

has recorded non-cash asset impairment charges of $3,556 for fiscal 2020 to its right-of-use assets and property 

and equipment, of which $662 is attributed to Hemisphere and $2,894 to Bridgehead. 

 

EBITDA  

EBITDA to date was a loss of $4,182 across the retail operating brands under Aegis Brands Inc. Adjusted for 

asset impairment charges, EBIDTA loss is $626. 
 

Other income 

Other income to date was $950, composed of $792 of government grants from COVID-19 financial relief 

programs, $486 from the revaluation of contingent consideration in accordance with the terms of the 

Bridgehead purchase agreement; this was partially offset against the change in the fair market value of NAC 

warrants (now converted to High Tide warrants) of $328 based on the Black-Scholes pricing model. 

 

In the prior year, the Company recognized other expense of $111 composed of recognized income from the 

NAC strategic alliance of $1,399, offset against the change in fair value of warrants of $1,270 and acquisition 

costs of $240. 

 

Interest and Financing Costs 

The Company reported net interest and financing costs of $792 largely driven by non-cash interest expense 

recorded on the Company’s lease obligations in accordance with IFRS 16 of $745, as well as financing costs 

incurred with respect to the short-term debts of the Company of $46. 

 

Net loss 

The Company reported a net loss of $7,730 or $0.34 per share to date. Adjusted for asset impairment charges, 

fair market value adjustments on warrants, financial relief programs for COVID-19 and the revaluation of the 

contingent consideration, net loss to date was $5,124 or $0.22 per share. 

 

Reconciliations of net income (loss) to EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA, adjusted net income (loss) and adjusted 

net income (loss) per share are provided in the section “Definitions and Discussion of Certain non-IFRS 

Financial Measures”. 
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES  

 

The Company primarily generates revenue from the sale of products at its Company-owned cafés and 

recreational retail cannabis dispensaries as well as ancillary channels, including grocery, wholesale and online 

shopping. For a more detailed discussion of the risks and uncertainties affecting the Company’s liquidity, see 

the general risks outlined below and the “Capabilities” section above. 

Summary of cash flows 

 
 52 weeks ended 

 December 26, 

2020 

December 28, 

2019 

   

Cash provided by operating activities – continuing operations $1,175 ($479) 

Cash used in operating activities – discontinued operations (1,275) 1,480 

Cash provided by (used in) operating activities  

(100) 1,001 

   

Cash used in investing activities – continuing operations (7,379) - 

Cash used in investing activities – discontinued operations (164) (1,863) 

Cash used in investing activities  

(7,543) (1,863) 

   

Cash used in financing activities – continuing operations (1,553) 85 

Cash used in financing activities – discontinued operations (1,193) (2,653) 

Cash provided used in financing activities  

(2,746) (2,568) 

   

Net Decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the period (10,389) (3,430) 

 

The Company used cash of $100 in its operating activities; $1,175 of cash was provided by the Company’s 

Bridgehead coffeehouses and Hemisphere cannabis dispensaries; $1,275 of cash was used through this period 

by the Company’s specialty-coffee retailer Second Cup Coffee Co. (classified as discontinued operations due 

to its pending sale).  

 

Cash used in investing activities is $7,379. This is largely driven by the net payment of $4,679 to acquire 

Bridgehead in January of fiscal 2020, as well as $2,749 of payments for capital expenditures including the 

construction and design of the Company’s recreational retail cannabis dispensaries.  

 

Cash used in financing activities is $2,746, composed of $1,553 of cash used primarily for the Company’s 

retail operating brands, as well as $1,193 of cash used for its discontinued operations of Second Cup. The 

Company paid $2,149 of lease payments in accordance with its underlying real estate obligations to landlords. 

This was partially offset against the receipt of capital from the Company’s two loans, including its promissory 

notes and revolving line of credit facility. 

 

Through fiscal 2020, the Company’s cash position decreased by $10,389, majority of which was driven by the 

net cash payment of $4,679 to acquire Bridgehead in January of 2020. The onset of the pandemic in March 

2020 has significantly impacted the Company’s ability to generate cash flows. The Company responded to this 

unprecedented situation by reducing its operating costs and expenses through decrease in forward inventory 

purchases, discretionary capital expenditures, lower people costs as a result of staff count at Aegis Central, 

temporary payroll reductions for Aegis Central staff and the Senior Leadership Team, as well as a suspension 

of compensation for Board members. Due to the economic impacts of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, and 

the various uncertainties which exist relating to the pandemic, there is significant doubt regarding the 

Company’s ability to meet its obligations, including its real estate lease commitments, as they come due. At 

this stage, the Company expects to continue to have access to its revolving line of credit facility and other 

forms of financial relief, including the CEWS and CERS. 
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Working capital as at 

 

  December 26, 2020  December 28, 2019 

     

Current assets $ 80,750 $ 23,543 

Current liabilities  74,084  19,423 

     

Working capital  $ 6,666 $ 4,120 

 

The Company’s net working capital is balance of $6,666 as at December 26, 2020 compared to a working 

capital balance of $4,120 at December 28, 2019. 

 

The Company has unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of $1,069 as at December 26, 2020 (December 28, 

2019 - $11,458). 

 

Financial instruments 

The following summarizes the nature of certain risks applicable to the Company’s financial instruments: 

Financial instrument Risks 

  

Financial assets  

Cash and cash equivalents 

Restricted cash 

Credit and interest rate 

Credit and interest rate 

Trade and other receivables Credit and interest rate 

Notes and leases receivable Credit and interest rate 

Warrants Credit, liquidity and interest rate 

  

Financial liabilities  

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Liquidity, currency and commodity 

Contingent consideration 

Short term debt 

Liquidity 

Liquidity 

Deposits from franchisees 

Lease liabilities 

Liquidity 

Liquidity 

 

Fair value of financial instruments 

 

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade and other receivables, accounts payable 

and accrued liabilities, provisions, other liabilities and gift card liability approximate their fair values due to 

their short-term maturity. The fair value of the long-term debt represents the actual principal amount drawn 

from the Company’s revolving line of credit facility, plus accrued interest. The credit facility has a maturity 

date of December 7, 2022. The carrying value of notes and leases receivable approximates their fair value as 

the implicit interest used to discount the base value is considered to be based on an appropriate credit and risk 

rate pertaining to the debtor. 

 

The fair value of warrants was determined using the Black-Scholes pricing model.  This valuation model 

requires five input variables: the exercise price of the warrants, the current price of the underlying stock, the 

time to expiration, the risk-free interest rate, and the stock’s volatility. The stock’s volatility was adjusted at 

year end for industry specific factors and other considerations to determine the fair value of the warrants.   

 

 

 

Financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are to be categorized in 

Levels 1 to 3 of the fair value hierarchy, based on the degree to which the fair value is observable. The three 

levels of the fair value hierarchy are: 
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● Level 1 - inputs derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities; 

● Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and 

● Level 3 - fair value derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that 

are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

 

The Company has not transferred any financial instruments between Levels 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy 

during the 52 weeks ended December 26, 2020. 

 

Credit risk 

 

Credit risk is the risk of an unexpected loss if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 

contractual obligation. 

 

a. Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash 

Credit risk associated with cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash is managed by ensuring these assets 

are placed with major financial institutions that have been assigned high credit ratings.  

 

b. Trade and other receivables, notes and leases receivable 

Trade and other receivables and notes and lease receivable primarily comprise amounts due from franchisees. 

Credit risk associated with these receivables is monitored as a result of the review and evaluation of franchisee 

account balances beyond a particular age.  Prior to accepting a franchisee, the Company undertakes a detailed 

screening process that includes the requirement that a franchisee has sufficient financing. The risk is further 

mitigated due to a broad franchisee base that is spread across the country, which limits the concentration of 

credit risk. 

 

Other receivables may include amounts owing from large organizations where often those organizations have 

a simultaneous vendor relationship with the Company’s franchisees. Credit risk is mitigated as a result of the 

Company directing and maintaining certain controls over the vendor relationship with the franchisees.  

 

The Company has applied IFRS 9’s simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime expected 

credit losses. Consistent with the prior fiscal year, the Company has leveraged a provision matrix that is based 

on the historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the 

economic environment.  

 

Liquidity risk 

 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company cannot meet a demand for cash or fund its obligations as they come 

due. Liquidity risk also includes the risk of not being able to liquidate assets in a timely manner at a reasonable 

price. Liquidity risk is managed through regular monitoring of forecast and actual cash flows, monitoring 

maturity dates of financial assets and liabilities, and also the management of the Company’s capital structure 

and debt leverage.  The Company’s main source of income is corporate café sales, sales from its company-

owned retail cannabis dispensaries of cannabis products and accessories, and other sale of goods and services.  

 

The Company will receive $14 million in cash on closing (subject to customary closing conditions and 

shareholder approval), which will strengthen its statement of financial position and its ability to meet 

commitments and obligations post-closing of the transaction. 

 

 

 

Commodity and currency risk 
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The Company purchases certain products, such as coffee, in U.S. dollars, thereby exposing the Company to 

risks associated with fluctuations in currency exchange rates. The Company is also directly and indirectly 

exposed to the commodity market risk.  The exposure relates to the changes in coffee commodity prices given 

it is a material input for product offerings.  The direct exposure pertaining to the wholesale business is mitigated 

given that the Company has the ability to adjust its sales price if commodity prices rise over a threshold level. 

This risk is mitigated by entering fixed price purchase commitments through coffee commodity brokers and 

by having the ability to adjust retail selling prices. 

 

Obligations from Operating Leases  

With the adoption of IFRS 16, leases are now reported in the consolidated statement of financial position as 

lease liabilities along with the associated right-of-use assets and leases receivable. 

 

Purchase Obligations 

Contracts are in place with third-party companies to purchase the coffee that is sold in cafés. In terms of these 

supply agreements, there is a guaranteed minimum value of coffee purchases of $579 (2019 - $854) for the 

subsequent 12 months. The coffee purchase commitment is composed of two components: unapplied futures 

commitment contracts and fixed price physical contracts.     

 

Other Obligations 

The Company is involved in litigation and other claims arising in the normal course of business. Judgment 

must be used to determine whether a claim has any merit, the amount of the claim and whether to record a 

provision, which is dependent on the potential success of the claim. It is believed that no significant losses or 

expenses will be incurred with such claims. However, there can be no assurance that unforeseen circumstances 

will not result in significant costs. The outcome of these actions is not determinable at this time, and 

adjustments, if any, will be recorded in the period of settlement. 

 

Related parties 

Related parties are identified as key management, members of the Board of Directors, and shareholders that 

effectively exercise significant influence on the Company.  Such related parties include any entities acting with 

or on behalf of the aforementioned parties. 

 

Effective August 1, 2019, Melinda Lee has been assisting management with strategic acquisitions under a 

consulting arrangement and as a result has stepped down as Audit Committee Chairman and committee 

member. 
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EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES  

 

The Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) must acknowledge they are 

responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over 

financial reporting (“ICFR”) for the Company. The control framework used by the CEO and CFO to design 

the Company’s ICFR is Internal Control over Financial Reporting - Guidance for Smaller Public Companies 

as issued by COSO.  In addition, in respect of: 

 

Disclosure controls and procedures  

The CEO and CFO must certify they have designed the disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to 

be designed under their supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to the 

Company is made known to them in a timely manner and that information required under securities legislation 

is recorded, processed, summarized and reported in a timely manner.  

 

As at March 31, 2021, the Company’s management, under the supervision of, and with the participation of, the 

CEO and CFO, evaluated the design of the disclosure controls and procedures.  Based on this evaluation, the 

CEO and CFO have concluded that, as at December 26, 2020 the Company’s disclosure controls and 

procedures were appropriately designed.  

 

Consistent with the concept of reasonable assurance, the Company recognizes that the relative cost of 

maintaining these controls and procedures should not exceed their expected benefits. As such, the Company’s 

disclosure controls and procedures can only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance that the objectives 

of such controls and procedures are met. 

 

During the 52 weeks ended December 26, 2020 and up to the date of the approval of the Audited Consolidated 

Financial Statements and MD&A, there has been no change that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely 

to materially affect the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures. 

 

Internal controls over financial reporting 

The CEO and CFO must certify they have designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused 

them to be designed under their supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 

financial reporting and the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance 

with IFRS.  

 

As at March 31, 2021, the Company’s management, under the supervision of, and with the participation of, the 

CEO and CFO, evaluated the design of the controls over financial reporting.  No material weaknesses in the 

design of these controls over financial reporting were identified.  Based on this evaluation, the CEO and CFO 

have concluded that, as at December 26, 2020, the Company’s controls over financial reporting were 

appropriately designed and were operating effectively. 

 

Consistent with the concept of reasonable assurance, the Company recognizes that the relative cost of 

maintaining these controls should not exceed their expected benefits.  As such, the Company’s internal controls 

over financial reporting can only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance that the objectives of such 

controls are met.  

 

During the 52 weeks ended December 26, 2020 and up to the date of the approval of the Audited Consolidated 

Financial Statements and MD&A, there has been no change in the Company’s internal control over financial 

reporting that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect the Company’s internal control 

over financial reporting. 
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 

 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions 

and use judgement in applying its accounting policies and in determining estimates and assumptions about the 

future.  Estimates and other judgements are continuously evaluated and are based on management’s experience 

and other factors, including expectations about future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 

circumstances.  Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are 

revised and in any future periods affected.  The accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the 

related actual results. 

 

The following are examples of areas of critical estimates, assumptions and judgements the Company makes in 

determining the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements: 

 

• impairment charges and/or the determination of the recoverable amounts of tangible and intangible 

assets subject to depreciation, amortization, or with indefinite lives, including the Company’s right-

of-use assets, property, equipment, trademark and goodwill. Management has assessed the 

recoverable amounts after noting indicators of impairment as a direct result of the COVID-19 

pandemic; 

• the derivation of deferred income tax assets and liabilities; 

• the estimated useful lives of assets; 

• the allowance for credit losses; 

• the fair value of intangible assets acquired in business combinations; and 

• the ability of the Company to remain a going concern. 

 

(i) Impairment charges 

Impairment analysis is an area involving management judgement in determining the recoverable amount of an 

asset. The recoverable amount of a cash generating unit (“CGU”) is calculated as the higher of the fair value 

less costs of disposal, and its value in use.  Value in use is determined by estimating the net present value of 

future cash flows derived from such assets using cash flow projections that have been discounted at an 

appropriate rate and based on a market participant’s view. In calculating the net present value of the future cash 

flows, certain assumptions are required to be made in respect of highly uncertain matters including:   

 

• growth in total revenue; 

• change and timing of cash flows such as the increase or decrease of expenditures; 

• selection of discount rates to reflect the risks involved; 

• applying judgement in cash flows specific to CGUs; and 

• estimating the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the future business operations of the Company, 

including the impact on the ability to grow revenue and cash flow. 

 

Changing the assumptions selected by management, in particular the revenue projections, discount rates and 

the growth rates used in the cash flow projections, could significantly affect the impairment evaluations and 

recoverable amounts. 

 

The Company’s impairment tests include significant assumptions related to the scenarios discussed above.  

 

(ii) Deferred income taxes 

The timing of reversal of temporary differences and the expected income allocation to various tax jurisdictions 

within Canada affects the effective income tax rate used to compute the deferred income taxes.      Management 

estimates the reversals and income allocations based on historical and budgeted operating results and income 

tax laws existing at the reporting dates. In addition, management occasionally estimates the current or future 

deductibility of certain expenditures, affecting current or deferred income tax balances and expenses. 
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(iii) Estimated useful lives 

The useful lives of property and equipment are based on the period during which the assets are expected to be 

available-for-use. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for depreciation of property and equipment 

for any period are affected by these estimated useful lives. It is possible that changes in these factors may cause 

significant changes in the amount of depreciation recorded in respect of the Company’s property and equipment 

in the future. 

 

(iv) Allowance for credit losses 

In accordance with IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”), the Company has recorded an allowance for 

forward-looking expected credit losses (“ECL”) for all loans and other debt financial assets that are not held at 

fair value through profit and loss. 

 

The Company notes that its cash equivalents and short-term investments are high-grade investments that are 

held with reputable financial institutions.  As such, these assets are considered to be low credit risk investments. 

 

For lease receivables, the Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company’s historical 

credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic 

environment.  

 

(v) Fair value of intangible assets acquired in a business combinations 

Management applied significant judgement in estimating the fair value of the intangible asset. To estimate the 

fair value of the trademarks, management, with the assistance of external valuation experts, used the royalty 

relief method to value the trademarks using a discounted cash flow model. Management developed significant      

assumptions related to revenue projections and growth rates, royalty rate      and the discount rate. 

 

(vi) Changes in accounting policy 

During the year the Company adopted the COVID-19-related rent concessions amendments to IFRS 16. As a 

result the Company has applied the optional practical expedient to elect to account for all eligible COVID-19 

related rent concessions as if they were not lease modifications. The company has accounted for these lease 

concessions as variable lease payments, resulting in an amount of $270 being recognized in Company-owned 

cafés and cost of product sales in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss.      
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

These audited statements have been prepared using the same accounting policies and methods of computation 

as the annual consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 26, 2020. Subject 

to closing conditions and shareholder approval, the Company will sell the disposal group, comprising the assets 

and liabilities of Second Cup which are included in the definitive purchase agreement. The Company has 

classified this disposal group as held for sale on the statement of financial position, and presented this as 

discontinued operations as a single amount in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss. 

 

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES  

 

This section is qualified by the section “Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” at the beginning of 

this MD&A. 

 

The performance of Aegis Brands Inc. is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain and increase the sales 

of existing cafés and retail cannabis dispensaries, add new profitable stores to the network and redevelop and 

modernize locations as their leases come due. System sales of the store network are affected by various external 

factors that can affect the specialty coffee industry as a whole. Potential risks include the following:  

 

There is uncertainty on how long the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic will continue to restrict business operations 

and disrupt the way consumers shop and buy from retail stores. There is also uncertainty on how long the 

government and business enforced lockdown will continue, as well as how long it will take for Canadians to 

be vaccinated, and whether the vaccines will be effective against the pandemic and associated variants. There 

is risk that consumer spending habits as they relate to retail may not return, partially or in full, in the near 

future. 

 

The specialty coffee industry is characterized by intense competition with respect to price, location, coffee and 

food quality, and numerous factors affecting discretionary consumer spending. Competitors include national 

and regional chains, independent cafés, all restaurants and food service outlets that serve coffee, and 

supermarkets that compete in the whole bean and roast and ground segments. 

 

The Company’s retail cannabis dispensaries are subject to a high degree of regulation by Provincial and Federal 

bodies of the Government, including the AGCO. In addition, due to the recent legalization of recreational retail 

cannabis in Canada, there are a growing number of small and large cannabis retailers in Canada that are 

involved in the sale of cannabis products and accessories, making this industry highly competitive. 

 

Growth of the store network depends on Aegis Brands Inc.’s ability to secure and build desirable locations for 

its retail operating brands. There can be no assurance that current locations will continue to be attractive, or 

that additional café or retail cannabis dispensary sites can be located and secured as demographic and traffic 

patterns change. It is possible that the current locations or economic conditions where cafés or stores are located 

could decline in the future, resulting in reduced sales in those locations.  There is no assurance that future sites 

will produce the same results as past sites.  

 

The Canadian specialty coffee industry is also affected by changes in discretionary spending patterns, which 

are in turn dependent on consumer confidence, disposable consumer income and general economic conditions.  

Factors such as changes in general economic conditions, recessionary or inflationary trends, job security and 

unemployment, equity market levels, consumer credit availability and overall consumer confidence levels may 

affect their business. The specialty coffee industry is also affected by demographic trends, traffic and weather 

patterns, as well competing cafés.  

 

Business could be adversely affected by increased concerns about food safety in general or other unusual 

events.  On May 28, 2015, the government of Ontario enacted the Making Healthy Choices Act, 2015. The Act 

came into force on January 1, 2017. Restaurant chains and other food service providers with 20 or more 

locations operating under the same (or substantially the same) name in Ontario have made changes to the 

information they display on menus, menu boards and displays. 
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The Company, as a market participant in the retail cannabis sector, faces risks due to the industry's unique legal 

status.  The Company is subject to risks and uncertainties that could significantly affect its future performance, 

including, but not limited to, changes to the regulatory environment for the cannabis industry, changes to the 

business environment for the cannabis industry, and risks and uncertainties posed by the performance and 

management of its retail cannabis operations.  In addition to general risks inherent in a nascent industry, the 

Company faces additional risks, such as risks in its banking and finance activity, placement of insurance 

coverage, and risks associated with a tightly controlled supply chain environment.   

 

The Company relies heavily on information technology (IT) network infrastructure. The ability to manage 

operations effectively and efficiently depends on the reliability and capacity of these IT systems, most of which 

are administered by third party suppliers. The Company relies on POS for system sales for both marketing 

trends and analyzing of key performance indicators. The stores rely on IT network infrastructure to order goods 

and process credit, debit and café card transactions. Aegis Central financial and administrative functions rely 

on IT infrastructure for accurate and reliable information. The failure of these systems to operate effectively, 

or problems with upgrading or replacing systems, could cause a material negative financial result. The 

Company is continually reviewing its systems and procedures to minimize risk. 

 

Reduced earnings could impact the company’s ability to comply with its credit facility covenants. 

 

The loss of key personnel and/or a shortage of experienced management and hourly employees could have an 

adverse impact on operations of cafés and retail cannabis dispensaries. 

 

A more detailed discussion of the risks and uncertainties is set out in the Company’s Annual Information Form, 

which is available at www.sedar.com. 

 

Risks Related to COVID-19 

The COVID-19 pandemic continues to significantly impact global economic activity, including consumer 

spending patterns at restaurants and retail locations. Further, due to governmental measures and public health 

recommendations including those relating to physical distancing, public meeting places, including restaurants 

and other hospitality-related venues, the Company could experience a significant near and potentially long-

term decline in customer visits. 

 

The Canadian specialty coffee industry and retail cannabis market is also affected by changes in discretionary 

spending patterns, which are in turn dependent on consumer confidence, disposable consumer income and 

general economic conditions. In the event that the Company is unable to continue to mitigate the impacts of 

the COVID-19 outbreak on operations, the Company may be unable to fulfill product delivery obligations to 

customers, costs may increase, and revenue and margins could decrease.  It is unknown whether and how the 

Company may be affected if such an epidemic continues to persist for an extended period of time.  A 

widespread health crisis could adversely affect the global economy, resulting in an economic downturn that 

could impact demand for business. The Company may incur expenses or delays relating to such events outside 

of our control, which could have a material adverse impact on business, operating results and the overall 

financial condition. 

 

The Company may also experience temporary shortages of supplies or staff to the extent its work force is 

impacted and may also continue to experience location closures for undefined periods of time. 

 

 

  

http://www.sedar.com/
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DEFINITIONS AND DISCUSSION ON CERTAIN NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES 

 

In this MD&A, the Company reports certain non-GAAP financial measures such as system sales of cafés and 

stores, same café and store sales, operating income (loss), EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA, adjusted net income 

(loss) and adjusted net income (loss) per share.  Non-GAAP measures are not defined under IFRS and are not 

necessarily comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other issuers. 

System sales of cafés and stores 

System sales of cafés and stores comprise the Gross Revenue from Company-operated cafés and retail cannabis 

dispensaries. 

Same café and store sales 

Same café and store sales represents the percentage change, on average, in retail sales at cafés and retail 

cannabis dispensaries that have been open for more than 12 months.  It is one of the key metrics the Company 

uses to assess its performance and provides a useful comparison between fiscal quarters.  The two principal 

factors that affect this metric are changes in customer traffic and changes in average check (the average dollar 

amount on a single transaction at the café or store). For comparison, same café sales for Bridgehead were 

measured against sales in the prior year before acquisition by the Company. 

Operating income (loss) 

Operating income (loss) represents revenue, less cost of goods sold, less operating expenses, and less 

impairment charges. This measure is not defined under IFRS, although the measure is derived from input 

figures in accordance with IFRS.  Management views this as an indicator of financial performance that excludes 

costs pertaining to interest and financing, and income taxes. 

EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA 

EBITDA represents earnings before interest and financing, income taxes, and depreciation and amortization.  

Adjustments to EBITDA are for items that are not necessarily reflective of the Company’s underlying operating 

performance.  As there is no generally accepted method of calculating EBITDA, this measure is not necessarily 

comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other issuers. EBITDA is presented as management 

believes it is a useful indicator of the Company’s ability to meet debt service and capital expenditure 

requirements and evaluate liquidity.  Management interprets trends in EBITDA as an indicator of relative 

financial performance.  EBITDA should not be considered by an investor as an alternative to net income or 

cash flows as determined in accordance with IFRS. 

Adjusted net income (loss) and adjusted net income (loss) per share 

Adjustments to net earnings (loss) and net earnings (loss) per share are for items that are not necessarily 

reflective of the Company’s underlying operating performance. These measures are not defined under IFRS, 

although the measures are derived from input figures in accordance with IFRS.  Management views these as 

indicators of financial performance. 
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Reconciliations of net income (loss) to operating income (loss) and EBITDA, adjusted net income (loss) and 

adjusted net income (loss) per share are provided below: 

  13 weeks ended  52 weeks ended 

  December 26, 

20201 
 

December 28, 

2019 
 

December 26, 

20201 
 

December 28, 

2019 

         

Net loss $ (14,048) $ (3,601) $ (19,622) $ (4,674) 

Add (deduct):         

Net loss from discontinued 

operations  

 7,906  2,548  11,892  2,802 

Income tax expense 

(recovery) 

 2,983  (384)  949  (34) 

Interest and financing loss  357  -  792  - 

Other loss (income)  (1,399)  929  (950)  111 

Operating loss $ (4,201) $ (508) $ (6,939) $ (1,795) 

   

  13 weeks ended  52 weeks ended 

  December 26, 

20201 
 

December 28, 

2019 
 

December 26, 

20201 
 

December 28, 

2019 
         

Net loss $ (14,048) $ (3,601) $ (19,622)  $ (4,674) 

Add (deduct):         

Net loss from discontinued 

operations 

 7,906  2,548  11,892  2,802 

Income tax expense 

(recovery) 

 2,983  (384)  949  (34) 

Interest and financing loss  357  -  792  - 

Other loss (income)  (1,399)  929  (950)  111 

Depreciation of property  

and equipment 

 68  -  824  - 

Amortization of intangible  

Assets 

 9  -  21  - 

Amortization of right-of- 

use assets 

 657  -  1,912  - 

EBITDA $ (3,467) $ (508) $ (4,182) $ (1,795) 

Add impact of the  

following: 

        

Asset impairment  

Charges 

 3,192  -  3,556  - 

Adjusted EBITDA $ (275) $ (508) $ (626) $           (1,795) 
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13 weeks ended 

 

 

 

 

 

 

52 weeks ended 
  December 26, 

20201 
 

December 28, 

2019 
 

December 26, 

20201 
 

December 28, 

2019 
         

Net loss $ (14,048)  $ (3,601) $ (19,622)  $ (4,674) 

Add (deduct) impact of the 

following: 

Net loss from discontinued 

operations 

  

7,906 

  

2,548 

  

11,892 

  

2,802 

After-tax other 

(income) loss  

 (1,399)  681  (950)  82 

After-tax asset 

impairment  

 3,192  - 

 

 3,556  - 

Adjusted net loss $ (4,349) $ (372) $ (5,124) $ (1,790) 

   

 

13 weeks ended 

  

 

52 weeks ended 
  December 26, 

20201 
 

December 28, 

2019 
 

December 26, 

20201 
 

December 28, 

2019 
         

Net loss per share $ (0.61) $ (0.18) $ (0.86) $ (0.23) 

Add (deduct) impact of the 

following: 

        

Net loss from discontinued 

operations 

 0.35  0.13  0.52  0.14 

After-tax other 

(income) loss per share 

 (0.06)  0.03  (0.04)  0.00 

After tax asset 

impairment 

 0.14  -  0.16  - 

 

Adjusted net loss per share 

 

$ 

 

(0.18) 

 

$ 

 

(0.02) 

 

$ 

 

(0.22) 

 

$ 

 

(0.09) 

     
 

1 The Company’s results in fiscal 2020 reflect the consolidated financial statements of its operating brands including Bridgehead and 

Hemisphere. 
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